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Purchasing Division

Post Office Box 50130

2019 Washington Street East

State of West Virginia
Solicitation Response

Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Proc Folder : 97405

Solicitation Description : Addendum 02 Auditing of the WV Water Pollution Control
Proc Type : Central Purchase Order

Date issued Solicitation Closes Solicitation No Version
2015-09-08 SR 0313 ESR09011500000000771 1
13:30:00
VENDOR
000000202390
SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC
FOR INFORMATION CONTACT THE BUYER
Beth Collins
(304) 558-2157
beth.a.collins@wv.gov
Signature X FEIN # DATE
All offers subject to all terms and conditions contained in this solicitation

Page: 1

FORM ID : WV-PRC-SR-001




Line Comm Ln Desc Qty Unit Issue  Unit Price Ln Total Or Contract Amount
1 Audit services 1.00000 JOB $17,000.000000  $17,000.00
Comm Code Manufacturer Specification Model #
84111600
West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Extended Description :

Page: 2



Purchasing Divison
%| 2019 Washington Street East

0 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

State of West Virginia
[ Eest 0ff s & 5% epian Request for Quotation

Proc Folder: 97405

Proc Type: Central Purchase Order

Doc Description: Auditing of the WV Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

Date Issued Solicitation Closes Solicitation No Version

2015-07-21 2015-08-20 CRFQ 0313 DEP1600000005 1
13:30:00

BID RECEIVING LOCATION

BID CLERK

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

PURCHASING DIVISION

2019 WASHINGTON ST E

CHARLESTON wv 25305
us

VENDOR

Vendor Name, Address and Telephone Number:

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC

1411 Virginia Street East, Suite 100
Charleston, WV 25301
304-343-4126

FOR INFORMATION CONTACT THE BUYER
Beth Collins

(304) 558-2157

beth.a.collins@wv.gov

Signature X Uu,w Zﬂa,w,@-c‘j_ FEN# 55-0538163

DATE August 18, 2015

All offers subject to all terms and conditions contained in this solicitation

Page: 1

FORM ID : WV-PRC-CRFQ-001




INVOICE TO

SHIP TO

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

601 57TH ST SE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

601 57TH ST SE

CHARLESTON WV 25304 CHARLESTON WV 25304

us us

Line Comm Ln Desc Qty Unit Issue Unit Price Total Price
1 Audit services 1.00000 JOB

Comm Code Manufacturer Specification Model #

84111600

Extended Description :

West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Page: 2
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Document Phase

Final

Document Description
Auditing of the WV Water Pollu tion Control

Revolving Fund

Page 3
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ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

See attached document(s) for additional Terms and Conditions
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GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT: Issuance of a Award Document signed by the
Purchasing Division Director, or his designee, and approved as to form by the Attorney
General’s office constitutes acceptance of this Contract made by and between the State of
West Virginia and the Vendor. Vendor’s signature on its bid signifies Vendor’s agreement to
be bound by and accept the terms and conditions contained in this Contract.

2. DEFINITIONS: As used in this Solicitation/Contract, the following terms shall have the
meanings attributed to them below. Additional definitions may be found in the specifications
included with this Selicitation/Contract.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

“Agency” or “Agencies” means the agency, board, commission, or other entity of the
State of West Virginia that is identified on the first page of the Solicitation or any
other public entity seeking to procure goods or services under this Contract.

“Contract” means the binding agreement that is entered into between the State and
the Vendor to provide the goods or services requested in the Soficitation.

“Director” means the Director of the West Virginia Department of Administration,
Purchasing Division.

“Purchasing Division” means the West Virginia Department of Administration,
Purchasing Division.

“Award Document” means the document signed by the Agency and the Purchasing
Division, and approved as to form by the Attorney General, that identifies the Vendor
as the contract holder.

“Solicitation” means the official notice of an opportunity to supply the State with
goods or services that is published by the Purchasing Division.

“State” means the State of West Virginia and/or any of its agencies, commissions,
boards, etc. as context requires.

“Vendor” or “Vendors” means any entity submifting a bid in response to the
Solicitation, the entity that has been selected as the lowest responsible bidder, or the
entity that has been awarded the Contract as context requires.
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3. CONTRACT TERM; RENEWAL; EXTENSION: The term of this Contract shall be
determined in accordance with the category that has been identified as applicable to this
Contract below:

[] Term Contract
Initial  Contract  Term: This  Contract  becomes effective  on
and extends for a period of
year(s).

Renewal Term: This Contract may be renewed upon the mutual written consent of
the Agency, and the Vendor, with approval of the Purchasing Division and the
Attorney General’s office (Attorney General approval is as to form only). Any
request for renewal should be submitted to the Purchasing Division thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration date of the initial contract term or appropriate renewal term. A
Contract renewal shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions of the original

contract. Renewal of this Contract is limited to successive one (1)
year periods or multiple renewal periods of less than one year, provided that the
multiple renewal periods do not exceed months in total. Automatic

renewal of this Contract is prohibited. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchasing
Division approval is not required on agency delegated or exempt purchases. Attorney
General approval may be required for vendor terms and conditions.

Delivery Order Limitations: In the event that this contract permits delivery orders, a
delivery order may only be issued during the time this Contract is in effect. Any
delivery order issued within one year of the expiration of this Contract shall be
effective for one year from the date the delivery order is issued. No delivery order
may be extended beyond one year after this Contract has expired.

[] Fixed Period Contract: This Contract becomes effective upon Vendor’s receipt of the
notice to proceed and must be completed within days.

[ ] Fixed Period Contract with Renewals: This Contract becomes effective upon Vendor’s
receipt of the notice to proceed and part of the Contract more fully described in the
attached specifications must be completed within days.
Upon completion, the vendor agrees that maintenance, monitoring, or warranty services
will be provided for one year thereafter with an additional successive
one year renewal periods or multiple renewal periods of less than one year provided that
the multiple renewal periods do not exceed months in total.
Automatic renewal of this Contract is prohibited.

One Time Purchase: The term of this Contract shall run from the issuance of the Award
Document until all of the goods contracted for have been delivered, but in no event will
this Contract extend for mote than one fiscal year.

[] Other: See attached.
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4, NOTICE TO PROCEED: Vendor shall begin performance of this Contract immediately
upon teceiving notice to proceed unless otherwise instructed by the Agency. Unless
otherwise specified, the fully executed Award Document will be considered notice to
proceed.

5. QUANTITIES: The quantities required under this Contract shall be determined in
accordance with the category that has been identified as applicable to this Contract below.,

[ ] Open End Contract: Quantities listed in this Solicitation are approximations only, based
on estimates supplied by the Agency. It is understood and agreed that the Contract shall
cover the quantities actually ordered for delivery during the term of the Contract, whether
more or less than the quantities shown,

[] Service: The scope of the service to be provided will be more clearly defined in the
specifications included herewith.

Combined Service and Goods: The scope of the service and deliverable goods to be
provided will be more clearly defined in the specifications included herewith.

[ ] One Time Purchase: This Contract is for the purchase of a set quantity of goods that are
identified in the specifications included herewith. Once those items have been delivered,
no additional goods may be procured under this Contract without an appropriate change
order approved by the Vendor, Agency, Purchasing Division, and Attorney General’s
office.

6. PRICING: The pricing set forth herein is firm for the life of the Contract, unless specified
elsewhere within this Solicitation/Contract by the State. A Vendor’s inclusion of price
adjustment provisions in its bid, without an express authorization from the State in the
Solicitation to do so, may result in bid disqualification.

7. EMERGENCY PURCHASES: The Purchasing Division Director may authorize the
Agency to purchase goods or services in the open market that Vendor would otherwise
provide under this Contract if those goods or services are for immediate or expedited delivery
in an emergency. Emergencies shall include, but are not limited to, delays in transportation or
an unanticipated increase in the volume of work, An emergency purchase in the open market,
approved by the Purchasing Division Director, shall not constitute of breach of this Contract
and shall not entitle the Vendor to any form of compensation or damages. This provision
does not excuse the State from fulfilling its obligations under a One Time Purchase contract,

8. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS: All of the items checked below must be provided to the
Purchasing Division by the Vendor as specified below.
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BID BOND: All Vendors shall furnish a bid bond in the amount of five percent
(5%) of the total amount of the bid protecting the State of West Virginia. The bid
bond must be submitted with the bid.

[ ] PERFORMANCE BOND: The apparent successful Vendor shall provide a
petrformance bond in the amount of . The performance bond
must be received by the Purchasing Division prior to Contract award. On
construction contracts, the performance bond must be 100% of the Contract value.

[ ] LABOR/MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND: The apparent successful Vendot shall
provide a labor/material payment bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract value.
The labor/material payment bond must be delivered to the Purchasing Division prior
to Contract award.

In lieu of the Bid Bond, Performance Bond, and Labor/Material Payment Bond, the
Vendor may provide certified checks, cashier’s checks, or irrevocable letters of credit.
Any certified check, cashier’s check, or irrevocable letter of credit provided in lieu of a
bond must be of the same amount and delivered on the same schedule as the bond it
replaces. A letter of credit submitted in lieu of a performance and labor/material payment
bond will only be allowed for projects under $100,000. Personal or business checks are
not acceptable.

[ ] MAINTENANCE BOND: The apparent successful Vendor shall provide a two (2)
yeat maintenance bond covering the roofing system. The maintenance bond must be
issued and delivered to the Purchasing Division prior to Contract award.

INSURANCE: The apparent successful Vendor shall furnish proof of the following
insurance prior to Contract award and shall list the state as a certificate holder:

[] Commercial General Liability Insurance: In the amount of
Or more,

[ ] Builders Risk Insurance: In an amount equal to 100% of the amount of the
Contract.

$1,000,000.00 Professional Liability Insurance

O 00O O
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9.

10.

11.

The apparent successful Vendor shall also furnish proof of any additional insurance
requirements contained in the specifications prior to Contract award regardless of
whether or not that insurance requirement is listed above.

[] LICENSE(S) / CERTIFICATIONS / PERMITS: In addition to anything required
under the Section entitled Licensing, of the General Terms and Conditions, the
apparent successful Vendor shall furnish proof of the following licenses,
certifications, and/or permits prior to Contract award, in a form acceptable to the
Purchasing Division.

[
u
[
[

The apparent successful Vendor shall also furnish proof of any additional licenses or
certifications contained in the specifications prior to Contract award regardless of
whether or not that requirement is listed above,

WORKERS? COMPENSATION INSURANCE: The apparent successful Vendor shall
comply with laws relating to workers compensation, shall maintain workers’ compensation
insurance when required, and shall furnish proof of workers’ compensation insurance upon
request.

LITIGATION BOND: The Director reserves the right to require any Vendor that files a
protest of an award to submit a litigation bond in the amount equal to one percent of the
fowest bid submitted or $5,000, whichever is greater. The entire amount of the bond shall be
forfeited if the hearing officer determines that the protest was filed for frivolous or improper
purpose, including but not limited to, the purpose of harassing, causing unnecessary delay, or
needless expense for the Agency. All litigation bonds shall be made payable to the
Purchasing Division. In lieu of a bond, the protester may submit a cashier’s check or certificd
check payable to the Purchasing Division. Cashier’s or certified checks will be deposited
with and held by the State Treasurer’s office. If it is determined that the protest has not been
filed for frivalous or improper purpose, the bond or deposit shall be returned in its entirety.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Vendor shall pay liquidated damages in the amount of

for .
This clause shall in no way be considered exclusive and shall not limit the State or Agency’s
right to pursue any other available remedy.
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12,

13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

19

20.

ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION: The State may accept or reject any bid in whole, or in part.
Vendor’s signhature on its bid signifies acceptance of the terms and conditions contained in
the Solicitation and Vendor agrees to be bound by the terms of the Contract, as reflected in
the Award Document, upon receipt.

FUNDING: This Contract shall continue for the term stated herein, contingent upon funds
being appropriated by the Legislature or otherwise being made available. In the event funds
are not appropriated or otherwise made available, this Contract becomes void and of no
effect beginning on July 1 of the fiscal year for which funding has not been appropriated or
otherwise made available.

PAYMENT: Payment in advance is prohibited under this Contract, Payment may only be
made after the delivery and acceptance of goods or services. The Vendor shall submit
invoices, in arrears.

TAXES: The Vendor shall pay any applicable sales, use, personal property or any other
taxes arising out of this Contract and the transactions contemplated thereby. The State of
West Virginia is exempt from federal and state taxes and will not pay or reimburse such
taxes.

CANCELLATION: The Purchasing Division Director reserves the right to cancel this
Contract immediately upon written notice to the vendor if the materials or workmanship
supplied do not conform to the specifications contained in the Contract. The Purchasing
Division Director may also cancel any purchase or Contract upon 30 days written notice to
the Vendor in accordance with West Virginia Code of State Rules § 148-1-7.16.2.

TIME: Time is of the essence with regard to all matters of time and performance in this
Contract.

APPLICABLE LAW: This Contract is governed by and interpreted under West Virginia
law without giving effect to its choice of law principles. Any information provided in
specification manuals, or any other source, verbal or written, which contradicts or violates
the West Virginia Constitution, West Virginia Code or West Virginia Code of State Rules is
void and of no effect.

COMPLIANCE: Vendor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations and ordinances. By submitting a bid, Vendor acknowledges that it has reviewed,
understands, and will comply with all applicable law.

PREVAILING WAGE: On any contract for the construction of a public improvement
whose cost at the time the contract is awarded will be paid with public money in an amount
greater than $500,000, Vendor and any subcontractors utilized by Vendor shall pay a rate or
rates of wages which shall not be less than the fair minimum rate or rates of wages
(prevailing wage), as established under West Virginia Code §§ 21-5A-1 et seq. Vendor shall
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21.

22,

23.

24,

25,

26,

27.

28,

be responsible for ensuring compliance with prevailing wage requirements and determining
when prevailing wage requirements are applicable.

ARBITRATION: Any references made to arbitration contained in this Contract, Vendor’s
bid, or in any American Institute of Architects documents pertaining to this Contract are
hereby deleted, void, and of no effect.

MODIFICATIONS: This writing is the parties” final expression of intent. Notwithstanding
anything contained in this Contract to the contrary, no modification of this Contract shall be
binding without mutual written consent of the Agency, and the Vendor, with approval of the
Purchasing Division and the Aftorney General’s office (Attorney General approval is as to
form only). No Change shall be implemented by the Vendor until such time as the Vendor
receives an approved written change order from the Purchasing Division.

WAIVER: The failure of either party to insist upon a strict performance of any of the terms
or provision of this Contract, or to exercise any option, right, or remedy herein contained,
shall not be construed as a waiver or a relinquishment for the future of such term, provision,
option, right, or remedy, but the same shall continue in full force and effect. Any waiver must
be expressly stated in writing and signed by the waiving party.

SUBSEQUENT FORMS: The terms and conditions contained in this Contract shall
supersede any and all subsequent terms and conditions which may appear on any form
documents submitted by Vendor to the Agency or Purchasing Division such as price lists,
order forms, invoices, sales agreements, or maintenance agreements, and includes internet
websites or other electronic documents. Acceptance or use of Vendor’s forms does not
constitute acceptance of the terms and conditions contained thereon.,

ASSIGNMENT: Neither this Contract nor any monies due, or to become due hereunder,
may be assigned by the Vendor without the express written consent of the Agency, the
Purchasing Division, the Attorney General’s office (as to form only), and any other
government agency or office that may be required to approve such assignments.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchasing Division approval may or may not be required on
certain agency delegated or exempt purchases.

WARRANTY: The Vendor expressly warrants that the goods and/or services covered by
this Contract will: (a) conform to the specifications, drawings, samples, or other description
furnished or specified by the Agency; (b) be merchantable and fit for the purpose intended;
and (¢} be free from defect in material and workmanship.

STATE EMPLOYEES: State employees are not permitted to utilize this Contract for
personal use and the Vendor is prohibited from permitting or facilitating the same.

BANKRUPTCY: In the event the Vendor files for bankruptey protection, the State of West
Virginia may deem this Contract null and void, and terminate this Contract without notice.
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29, CONFIDENTIALITY: The Vendor agrees that it will not disclose to anyone, directly or

30.

31

indirectly, any such personally identifiable information or other confidential information
gained from the Agency, unless the individual who is the subject of the information consents
to the disclosure in writing or the disclosure is made pursuant to the Agency’s policies,
procedures, and rules. Vendor further agrees to comply with the Confidentiality Policies and
Information Security Accountability Requirements, set forth in
http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/privacy/default.html.

DISCLOSURE: Vendor’s response to the Solicitation and the resulting Contract are
considered public documents and will be disclosed to the public in accordance with the laws,
rules, and policies governing the West Virginia Purchasing Division. Those laws include, but
are not limited to, the Freedom of Information Act found in West Virginia Code §§ 29B-1-1
et seq. and the competitive bidding laws found West Virginia Code §§ 5A-3-1 et seq., 5-22-1
et seq., and 5G-1-1 et seq.

If a Vendor considers any part of its bid to be exempt from public disclosure, Vendor must so
indicate by specifically identifying the exempt information, identifying the exemption that
applies, providing a detailed justification for the exemption, segregating the exempt
information from the general bid information, and submitting the exempt information as part
of its bid but in a segregated and clearly identifiable format. Failure to comply with the
foregoing requirements will result in public disclosure of the Vendor’s bid without further
notice. A Vendor’s act of marking all or nearly all of its bid as exempt is not sufficient to
avoid disclosure and WILL NOT BE HONORED. Vendor’s act of marking a bid or any part
thereof as “confidential” or “proprietary” is not sufficient to avoid disclosure and WILL
NOT BE HONORED. A legend or other statement indicating that all or substantially ail of
the bid is exempt from disclosure is not sufficient to avoid disclosure and WILL NOT BE
HONORED. Additionally, pricing or cost information will not be considered exempt from
disclosure and requests to withhold publication of pricing or cost information WILL NOT
BE HONORED.

Vendor will be required to defend any claimed exemption for nondisclosure in the event of
an administrative or judicial challenge to the State’s nondisclosure. Vendor must indemnify
the State for any costs incurred related to any exemptions claimed by Vendor. Any questions
regarding the applicability of the various public records laws should be addressed to your
own legal counsel prior to bid submission.

LICENSING: In accordance with West Virginia Code of State Rules §148-1-6.1.7, Vendor
must be licensed and in good standing in accordance with any and all state and local laws and
requirements by any state or local agency of West Virginia, including, but not limited to, the
West Virginia Secretary of State’s Office, the West Virginia Tax Department, West Virginia
Insurance Commission, or any other state agency or political subdivision. Upon request, the
Vendor must provide all necessary releases to obtain information to enable the Purchasing
Division Director or the Agency to verify that the Vendor is licensed and in good standing
with the above entities.
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32. ANTITRUST: In submitting a bid to, signing a contract with, or accepting a Award

33.

34.

35,

Document from any agency of the State of West Virginia, the Vendor agrees to convey, sell,
assign, or transfer to the State of West Virginia all rights, title, and interest in and to all
causes of action it may now or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States
and the State of West Virginia for price fixing and/or unreasonable restraints of trade relating
to the particular commodities or services purchased or acquired by the State of West
Virginia. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing
agency tenders the initial payment to Vendor,

VENDOR CERTIFICATIONS: By signing its bid or entering into this Contract, Vendor
certifies (1) that its bid or offer was made without prior understanding, agreement, or
connection with any corporation, firm, limited liability company, partnership, person or
entity submitting a bid or offer for the same material, supplies, equipment or services; (2)
that its bid or offer is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud; (3) that this Contract
is accepted or entered into without any prior understanding, agreement, or connection to any
other entity that could be considered a violation of law; and (4) that it has reviewed this
Solicitation in its entirety; understands the requirements, terms and conditions, and other
information contained herein. Vendor’s signature on its bid or offer also affirms that neither
it nor its representatives have any interest, nor shall acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
which would compromise the performance of its services hereunder. Any such interests shall
be promptly presented in detail to the Agency. The individual signing this bid or offer on
behalf of Vendor certifies that he or she is authorized by the Vendor to execute this bid or
offer or any documents related thereto on Vendor’s behalf that he or she is authorized to
bind the Vendor in a contractual relationship; and that, to the best of his or her knowledge,
the Vendor has properly registered with any State agency that may require registration.

PURCHASING CARD ACCEPTANCE: The State of West Virginia currently utilizes a
Purchasing Card program, administered under contract by a banking institution, to process
payment for goods and services. The Vendor must accept the State of West Virginia’s
Purchasing Card for payment of all orders under this Contract unless the box below is

checked.

Vendor is not required to accept the State of West Virginia’s Purchasing Card as
payment for all goods and services.

VENDOR RELATIONSHIP: The relationship of the Vendor to the State shall be that of an
independent coniractor and no principal-agent relationship or employer-employee
relationship is contemplated or created by this Contract. The Vendor as an independent
contractor is solely liable for the acts and omissions of its employees and agents. Vendor
shall be responsible for selecting, supervising, and compensating any and all individuals
employed pursuant to the terms of this Solicitation and resulting contract, Neither the
Vendor, nor any employees or subcontractors of the Vendor, shall be deemed to be
employees of the State for any purpose whatsoever. Vendor shall be exclusively responsible
for payment of employees and contractors for all wages and salaries, taxes, withholding
payments, penaltics, fees, fringe benefits, professional liability insurance premiums,
contributions to insurance and pension, or other deferred compensation plans, including but
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36.

37.

38.

39.

40,

not limited to, Workers® Compensation and Social Security obligations, licensing fees, etc.
and the filing of all necessary documents, forms, and returns pertinent to all of the foregoing.
Vendor shall hold harmless the State, and shall provide the State and Agency with a defense
against any and all claims including, but not limited to, the foregoing payments,
withholdings, contributions, taxes, Social Security taxes, and employer income tax returns.

INDEMNIFICATION: The Vendor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
State and the Agency, their officers, and employees from and against: (1) Any claims or
losses for services rendered by any subcontractor, person, or firm performing or supplying
services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of the Contract; (2) Any
claims or losses resulting to any person or entity injured or damaged by the Vendor, its
officers, employees, or subcontractors by the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery,
performance, use, or disposition of any data used under the Contract in a manner not
authorized by the Contract, or by Federal or State statutes or regulations; and (3) Any failure
of the Vendor, its officers, employees, or subcontractors to observe State and Federal laws
including, but not limited to, labor and wage and hour laws.

PURCHASING AFFIDAVIT: In accordance with West Virginia Code § 5A-3-10a, all
Vendors are required to sign, notarize, and submit the Purchasing Affidavit stating that
neither the Vendor nor a related party owe a debt to the State in excess of $1,000, The
affidavit must be submitted prior to award, but should be submitted with the Vendor’s bid. A
copy of the Purchasing Aftidavit is included herewith.

ADDITIONAL AGENCY AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT USE: This Contract may be
utilized by and extends to other agencies, spending units, and political subdivisions of the
State of West Virginia; county, municipal, and other local government bodies; and school
districts (“Other Government Entities”). This Contract shall be extended to the
aforementioned Other Government Entities on the same prices, terms, and conditions as
those offered and agreed to in this Contract. If the Vendor does not wish to extend the prices,
terms, and conditions of its bid and subsequent contract to the Other Government Entities,
the Vendor must clearly indicate such refusal in its bid. A refusal to extend this Contract to
the Other Government Entitics shall not impact or influence the award of this Contract in any
manner.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Vendor, its officers or members or employees, shall not
presently have or acquire an interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict with or
compromise the performance of its obligations hereunder. Vendor shall periodically inquire
of its officers, members and employees to ensure that a conflict of interest does not arise.
Any conflict of interest discovered shall be promptly presented in detail to the Agency.

REPORTS: Vendor shall provide the Agency and/or the Purchasing Division with the
following reports identified by a checked box below:

Such reports as the Agency and/or the Purchasing Division may request. Requested
reports may include, but are not limited to, quantities purchased, agencies utilizing the
contract, total contract expenditures by agency, etc.
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41.

42.

[ 1 Quarterly reports detailing the total quantity of purchases in units and dollars, along with
a listing of purchases by agency. Quarterly reports should be delivered to the Purchasing
Division via email at purchasing.requisitions@wyv.gov,

BACKGROUND CHECK: In accordance with W. Va. Code § 15-2DD-3, the Director of the
Division of Protective Services shall require any service provider whose employees ate
regularly employed on the grounds or in the buildings of the Capitol complex or who have
access to sensitive or critical information to submit to a fingerprint-based state and federal
background inquiry through the state repository. The service provider is responsible for any
costs associated with the fingerprint-based state and federal background inquiry.

After the contract for such services has been approved, but before any such employees are
permitted to be on the grounds or in the buildings of the Capitol complex or have access to
sensitive or critical information, the service provider shall submit a list of all persons who
will be physically present and working at the Capitol complex to the Director of the Division
of Protective Services for purposes of verifying compliance with this provision.

The State reserves the right to prohibit a service provider’s employees from accessing
sensitive or critical information or to be present at the Capitol complex based upon results
addressed from a criminal background check.

Service providers should contact the West Virginia Division of Protective Services by phone
at (304) 558-9911 for more information,

PREFERENCE FOR USE OF DOMESTIC STEEL PRODUCTS: Except when
authorized by the Director of the Purchasing Division pursuant to W. Va. Code § 5A-3-56,
no contractor may use or supply steel products for a State Contract Project other than those
steel products made in the United States. A contractor who uses steel products in violation of
this section may be subject to civil penalties pursuant to W. Va. Code § 5A-3-56. As used in
this section:

a. “State Contract Project” means any erection or construction of, or any addition to,
alteration of or other improvement to any building or structure, including, but not limited
to, roads or highways, or the installation of any heating or cooling or ventilating plants or
other equipment, or the supply of and materials for such projects, pursuant to a contract
with the State of West Virginia for which bids were solicited on or after June 6, 2001.

b. “Steel Products” means products rolled, formed, shaped, drawn, extruded, forged, cast,
fabricated or otherwise similarly processed, or processed by a combination of two or more
or such operations, from steel made by the open heath, basic oxygen, electric furnace,
Bessemer or other steel making process. The Puirchasing Division Director may, in
writing, authorize the use of foreign steel products if:

¢. The cost for each contract item used does not exceed one tenth of one percent (.1%) of the
total contract cost or two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), whichever is greater,
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For the purposes of this section, the cost is the value of the steel product as delivered to
the project; or

d. The Director of the Purchasing Division determines that specified steel materials are not
produced in the United States in sufficient quantity or otherwise are not reasonably
available to meet contract requirements,

PREFERENCE FOR USE OF DOMESTIC ALUMINUM, GLASS, AND STEEL; In
Accordance with W, Va, Code § 5-19-1 et seq., and W. Va. CSR § 148-10-1 et seq., for
every contract or subcontract, subject to the limitations contained herein, for the construction,
reconstruction, alteration, repair, improvement or maintenance of public works or for the
purchase of any item of machinery or equipment to be used at sites of public works, only
domestic aluminum, glass or steel products shall be supplied uniess the spending officer
determines, in writing, after the receipt of offers or bids, (1) that the cost of domestic
aluminum, glass or steel products is unreasonable or inconsistent with the public interest of
the State of West Virginia, (2) that domestic aluminum, glass or steel products are not
produced in sufficient quantities to meet the contract requirements, or (3) the available
domestic aluminum, glass, or steel do not meet the contract specifications, This provision
only applies to public works contracts awarded in an amount more than fifty thousand dollars
($50,000) or public works contracts that require more than ten thousand pounds of steel
products.

The cost of domestic aluminum, glass, or steel products may be unreasonable if the cost is
more than twenty percent (20%) of the bid or offered price for foreign made aluminum,
glass, or steel products. If the domestic aluminum, glass or steel products to be supplied or
produced in a “substantial labor surplus area”, as defined by the United States Department of
Labor, the cost of domestic aluminum, glass, or steel products may be unreasonable if the
cost is more than thirty percent (30%) of the bid or offered price for foreign made aluminum,
glass, or steel products.

This preference shall be applied to an item of machinery or equipment, as indicated above,
when the item is a single unit of equipment or machinery manufactured primarily of
aluminum, glass or steel, is part of a public works contract and has the sole purpose or of
being a permanent part of a single public works project. This provision does not apply to
equipment or machinery purchased by a spending unit for use by that spending unit and not
as part of a single public works project.

All bids and offers including domestic aluminum, glass or steel products that exceed bid or
offer prices including foreign aluminum, glass or steel products after application of the
preferences provided in this provision may be reduced to a price equal to or lower than the-
lowest bid or offer price for foreign aluminum, glass or steel products plus the applicable
preference. If the reduced bid or offer prices are made in writing and supersede the prior bid
or offer prices, all bids or offers, including the reduced bid or offer prices, will be reevaluated
in accordance with this rule.

'
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CERTIFICATIONAND SIGNATURE PAGE

By signing below, or submitting documentation through wvOASIS, I certify that | have reviewed
this Solicitation in its entirety; understand the requirements, terms and conditions, and other
information contained herein; that I am submitting this bid, offer or proposal for review and
consideration; that I am authorized by the vendor to execute and submit this bid, offer, or
proposal, or any documents related thereto on vendor’s behalf: that I am authorized to bind the
vendor in a contractual relationship; and that to the best of my knowledge, the vendor has
properly registered with any State agency that may require registration.

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
(Company)

( ,pyu‘,q ZOMM Chris Lambert, CPA, Member

(Authorized Signature) (Representative Name, Title)

(304) 343-4126; (304) 343-8008; August 18, 2015
(Phone Number) (Fax Number) (Date)
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ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM
SOLICITATION NO.:

Instructions:  Please acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this solicitation ‘by
completing this addendum acknowledgment form. Check the box next to each addendum
received and sign below. Failure to acknowledge addenda may result in bid disqualification.

Acknowledgment: 1 hereby acknowledge receipt of the following addenda and have made the

necessary revisions to my proposal, plans and/or specification, etc.

Addendum Numbers Received:
(Check the box next to each addendum received)

D Addendum No. | ID] Addendum No. 6
]D] Addendum No. 2 D Addendum No. 7
D Addendum No, 3 D Addendum No. §
D Addendum No. 4 D Addendum No. 9
D Addendum No. 5 D Addendum No. 10

I understand that failure to confirm the receipt of addenda may be cause for rejection of this bid.
I further understand that any verbal representation made or assumed to be made during any oral
discussion held between Vendor’s representatives and any state personnel is not binding. Only
the information issued in writing and added to the specifications by an official addendum is
binding,

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Company

Authorized Signature

August 18, 2015
Date

NOTE: This addendum acknowledgement should be submitted with the bid to expedite
document processing.
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INSTRUCTIONS TO YENDORS SUBMITTING BIDS

1. REVIEW DOCUMENTS THOROUGHLY: The attached documents contain a solicitation
for bids. Please read these instructions and all documents attached in their entirety. These
instructions provide critical information about requirements that if overlooked couid lead to
disqualification of a Vendor’s bid. All bids must be submitted in accordance with the
provisions contained in these instructions and the Solicitation. Failure to do so may result in
disqualification of Vendor’s bid.

2. MANDATORY TERMS: The Solicitation may contain mandatory provisions identified by

the use of the words “must,” “will,” and “shail.” Failure to comply with a mandatory term in
the Solicitation will result in bid disqualification.

3. PREBID MEETING: The item identified below shall apply to this Solicitation.
A pre-bid meeting will not be held prior to bid opening.

[] A NON-MANDATORY PRE-BID meeting will be held at the following place and
time:

1A MANDATORY PRE-BID meeting will be held at the following place and time:

All Vendors submitting a bid must attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting. Failure to attend
the mandatory pre-bid meeting shall result in disqualification of the Vendor’s bid. No one
person attending the pre-bid meeting may represent more than one Vendor.

An attendance sheet provided at the pre-bid meeting shall serve as the official document
verifying attendance. The State will not accept any other form of proof or documentation to
verify attendance, Any person attending the pre-bid meeting on behalf of a Vendor must list
on the attendance sheet his or her name and the name of the Vendor he or she is representing.
Additionally, the person attending the pre-bid meeting should include the Vendor’s E-Mail
address, phone number, and Fax number on the attendance sheet. It is the Vendor’s
responsibility to locate the attendance sheet and provide the required information. Failure to
complete the attendance sheet as required may result in disqualification of Vendor’s bid.
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All Vendors should arrive prior to the starting time for the pre-bid. Vendors who arrive after
the starting time but prior to the end of the pre-bid will be permitted to sign in, but are
charged with knowing all matters discussed at the pre-bid.

Questions submitted at least five business days prior to a scheduled pre-bid will be discussed
at the pre-bid meeting if possible. Any discussions or answers to questions at the pre-bid
meeting are preliminary in nature and are non-binding. Official and binding answers to
questions will be published in a written addendum to the Solicitation prior to bid opening.

4. VENDOR QUESTION DEADLINE: Vendors may submit questions relating to this
Solicitation to the Purchasing Division. Questions must be submitted in writing. All
questions must be submitted on or before the date listed below and to the address listed
below in order to be considered. A written response will be published in a Solicitation
addendum if a response is possible and appropriate. Non-written discussions, conversations,
or questions and answers regarding this Solicitation are preliminary in nature and are non-
binding. Submitted e-mails should have solicitation number in the subject line.

Question Submission Deadline: August 7, 2015 at 5:00PM, EST

Submit Questions to; Beth A. Collins, Senior Buyer

2019 Washington Street, East

Charleston, WV 25305

Fax: (304) 558-4115 (Vendors should not use this fax number for bid submission)
Email: beth.a.collins@wv.gov

5. VERBAL COMMUNICATION: Any verbal communication between the Vendor and any
State petsonnel is not binding, including verbal communication at the mandatory pre-bid
conference. Only information issued in writing and added to the Solicitation by an official
written addendum by the Purchasing Division is binding.

6. BID SUBMISSION: All bids must be submitted electronically through wvOASIS or signed
and delivered by the Vendor to the Purchasing Division at the address listed below on or
before the date and time of the bid opening. Any bid received by the Purchasing Division
staff is considered to be in the possession of the Purchasing Division and will not be returned
for any reason. The Purchasing Division will not accept bids, modification of bids, or
addendum acknowledgment forms via e-mail. Acceptable delivery methods include
electronic submission via wvOASIS, hand delivery, delivery by courier, or facsimile. The bid
delivery address is:

Department of Administration, Purchasing Division

2019 Washington Street East
Charleston, WV 25305-0130
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A bid that is not submitted electronically through wvOASIS should contain the information
listed below on the face of the envelope or the bid may be rejected by the Purchasing
Division.:

SEALED BID:
BUYER:
SOLICITATION NO.:
BID OPENING DATE:
BID OPENING TIME:
FAX NUMBER:

In the event that Vendor is responding to a request for proposal, and choses to respond in a
manner other than by electronic submission through wvOASIS, the Vendor shall submit one
original technical and one original cost proposal plus convenience copies of each to
the Purchasing Division at the address shown above. Additionally, if Vendor does not submit
its bid through wvOASIS, the Vendor should identify the bid type as either a technical or
cost proposal on the face of each bid envelope submitted in response to a request for proposal
as follows:

BID TYPE: (This only applies to CRFP)

D Technical

[[] Cost

7. BID OPENING: Bids submifted in response to this Solicitation will be opened at the
location identified below on the date and time listed below. Delivery of a bid after the bid
opening date and time will result in bid disqualification. For purposes of this Solicitation, a
bid is considered delivered when confirmation of delivery is provided by wvOASIS (in the
case of electronic submission) or when the bid is time stamped by the official Purchasing
Division time clock (in the case of hand delivery).

Bid Opening Date and Time: August 20, 2015 at 1:30PM, EST

Bid Opening Location: Department of Administration, Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

8. ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Changes or revisions to this Solicitation will be
made by an official written addendum issued by the Purchasing Division. Vendor should
acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this Solicitation by completing an Addendum
Acknowledgment Form, a copy of which is included herewith. Failure to acknowledge
addenda may result in bid disqualification. The addendum acknowledgement should be
submitted with the bid to expedite document processing.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

BID FORMATTING: Vendor should type or electronically enter the information onto its
bid to prevent errors in the evaluation. Failure to type or electronically enter the information
may result in bid disqualification.

ALTERNATES: Any model, brand, or specification listed in this Solicitation establishes
the acceptable level of quality only and is not intended to reflect a preference for, or in any
way favor, a particular brand or vendor. Vendors may bid alternates to a listed mode! or
brand provided that the alternate is at least equal to the model or brand and complies with the
required specifications. The equality of any alternate being bid shall be determined by the
State at its sole discretion. Any Vendor bidding an alternate model or brand should clearly
identify the alternate items in its bid and should include manufacturer’s specifications,
industry literature, and/or any other relevant documentation demonstrating the equality of the
alternate items. Failure to provide information for alternate items may be grounds for
rejection of a Vendor’s bid.

EXCEPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS: The Solicitation contains the specifications that
shall form the basis of a contractual agteement. Vendor shall clearly mark any exceptions,
clarifications, or other proposed modifications in its bid. Exceptions to, clarifications of, or
modifications of a requirement or term and condition of the Solicitation may result in bid
disqualification.

COMMUNICATION LIMITATIONS: In accordance with West Virginia Code of State
Rules §148-1-6.6, communication with the State of West Virginia or any of its employees
regarding this Solicitation during the solicitation, bid, evaluation or award periods, except
through the Purchasing Division, is strictly prohibited without prior Purchasing Division
approval. Purchasing Division approval for such communication is implied for all agency
delegated and exempt purchases.

REGISTRATION: Prior to Contract award, the apparent successful Vendor must be
properly registered with the West Virginia Purchasing Division and must have paid the $125
fee, if applicable.

UNIT PRICE: Unit prices shall prevail in cases of a discrepancy in the Vendor’s bid.

PREFERENCE: Vendor Preference may only be granted upon written request and only in
accordance with the West Virginia Code § SA-3-37 and the West Virginia Code of State
Rules. A Vendor Preference Certificate form has been attached hereto to allow Vendor to
apply for the preference. Vendor’s failure to submit the Vendor Preference Certificate form
with its bid will result in denial of Vendor Preference. Vendor Preference does not apply to
construction projects.

SMALL, WOMEN-OWNED, OR MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESSES: Yor any
solicitations publicly advertised for bid, in accordance with West Virginia Code §5A-3-
37(a)(7) and W. Va, CSR § 148-22-9, any non-resident vendor certified as a small, women-
owned, or minority-owned business under W. Va. CSR § 148-22-9 shall be provided the
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same preference made available to any resident vendor. Any non-resident small, women-
owned, or minority-owned business must identify itself as such in writing, must submit that
writing to the Purchasing Division with its bid, and must be properly certified under W. Va.
CSR § 148-22-9 prior to contract award to receive the preferences made available to resident
vendors. Preference for a non-resident small, women-owned, or minority owned business
shall be applied in accordance with W. Va. CSR § 148-22-9,

17. WAIVER OF MINOR IRREGULARITIES: The Director reserves the right to waive
minor irregularities in bids or specifications in accordance with West Virginia Code of State
Rules § 148-1-4.6,

18, ELECTRONIC FILE ACCESS RESTRICTIONS: Vendor must ensure that its
submission in wvQASIS can be accessed by the Purchasing Division staff immediately upon
bid opening. The Purchasing Division will consider any file that cannot be immediately
opened and/or viewed at the time of the bid opening (such as, encrypted files, password
protected files, or incompatible files) to be blank or incomplete as context requires, and are
therefore unacceptable. A vendor will not be permitted to unencrypt files, remove password
protections, or resubmit documents after bid opening if those documents are required with
the bid.
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REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
CWSRF AUDIT

SPECIFICATIONS

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE: The West Virginia Purchasing Division is soliciting bids on
behalf of The West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection to establish a
contract for Certified Public Accountants to audit the West Virginia Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund, also known as the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

2. DEFINITIONS: The terms listed below shall have the meanings assigned to them
below. Additional definitions can be found in section 2 of the General Terms and
Conditions.

2.1 “Contract Item” means Reporting/ETL, and Quality Software as more fully
described by these specifications.

2.2 “Pricing Page” means the pages contained in wvOASIS or attached as Exhibit A,
upon which Vendor should 1ist its proposed price for the Contract items.

2.3 “Solicitation” means the official notice of an opportunity to supply the State with
goods or services that is published by the Purchasing Division,

2.4 “WVDEP and DEP” means the West Virginia Department of Environmental
Protection.

2.5 “CWSRF” means the Clean Water State Revolving Fund.

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

3.1 Mandatory Contract Item Requirements: Contract [tem must meet or exceed the
mandatory requirements listed below.

3.1.1 CWSRF Audit:

3.L1.1 Scope of Work: The DEP requires the auditor to express an
opinion on the fair presentation of the CWSRF’s financial
statement in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and render a report on the
internal contrels and compliance with Title VI of the Clean Water
Act.
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CWSRYF AUDIT

3.1.1.2 Auditing Standards to be followed: the audit shall be performed
in accordance with -auditing standards generally -accepted m the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

3.1.1.3 Reports to be issued: Following the completion of the audit of the
financial ‘statements, the -auditor shall issue a report on their fair
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; a report on the internal
controls and a report on compliance with Title VI of the Clean
Water Act.

3.1.1.3.1 Irregularities and illegal acts: Auditors shall be required to
mmake an immediate, written report of all -irregularities -and
illegal acts of which they become aware to the State
Comptrolier under the authority of Section 5A-2-33 of the
State Code, as well as to the Secretary of the Department, the
Division Director of the Division of Water and Waste
Management (DWWM) and -the Department’s -Chief Financial
Officer.

3.1.1.3.2 Reporting to the Department’s Secretary: The auditors
shall assure themselves that the Department is informed of
each of the following:

3.1.1.3.2.1 The auditor’s responsibility under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

3.1.1.3.2.2 Significant accounting policies.

3.1.1.3.2.3 Other information in documents containing audited
financial statements.

3.1.1.3.2.4 Disagreements with management.

3.1.1.3.2.5 Difficulties-encountered in performing the audit.

3.1.1.3.3 Special Considerations: The audit of the CWSREF is funded
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA).

Revised 10/27/2014




REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
CWSRF AUDIT
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Federal and State audit requirements.

3.1.1.3.3.1 The auditor will include a reasonable period of time for
meetings with USEPA in the bid.

3.1.1.3.3.2 The per hour rate will be spelled out in the bid so that only
hours actually spent with USEPA will be charged at the
rate.

3.1.1.3.3.3 Any anticipated travel must be incorporated into the
vendor’s fee. No travel will be reimbursed by the State and
is the sole responsibility of the vendor.

3.1.1.3.4 Working Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers:
All working papers and reports must be retained, -at the
auditor’s expense, for a period of five (5) years, unless the firm
is notified in writing by the Department of the need to extend
the retention period, The auditor will be required to make
working papers available, upon request, to the following parties
or their designees:

Chief Financial Officer
Department of Environmental Protection
State of West Virginia

Financial Accounting and Reporting Section
Department of Administration
State of West Virginia

United States Environmental Protection Agency
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

In addition, the firm shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of
successor audit firms and federal grantors and allow the review
of working papers relating to matters of continuing accounting
significance.
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3.1.1.3.5

3.1.1.3.6

Vendor Requirements: All vendors must provide any and all
peer reviews performed within the fast-6 years. Thevendor
must have received a rating of pass or pass with deficiencies on
all applicable peer reviews, A failed peer reviews will not be
acceptable. No vendor should bid on the request with
knowledge of a pending peer review that will likely be
classified as failed.

Description of the water pollution control revolving fund:
Names and Telephone Number of Contact Persons and
Location of Offices

The auditor’s principal contact with the Division will be the
Chief Financial Officer ora-designated representative who will
coordinate the assistance to be provided by the Department to
the auditors.

LIST OF KEY POSITIONS, OFFICE LOCATIONS AND
TELEPHONE NUMBERS

Katheryn D. Emery, P.E.
Program Manager CWSRF

601 57" Street, S.E.
Charleston, WV 25304
Telephone: 926-0499 ext. 1611

Randy Taylor

Chief Financial Officer

601 57" Street, S.E.
Charleston, WV 25304
Telephone: 926-0499 ext. 1552

Jennifer R. Paxton, CPA

Accounting & Financial Reporting Managet
601 57" Street, S.E.

Charleston, WV 25304

Telephone: 926-0499 ext.1565
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3.1.1.3.7 Background Information: The Water Pollution Control
Revolving Fund was established under Article 2, Chapter 22C
of the West Virginia Code to fill the void left by the demise of
the Construction Grants Program. The purpose of this fund is
to:
3.1.1.3,7.1 Provide low interest loans to communities that require
sewer service either by upgrading the existing wastewater
-system or establishing a new utility.
3.1.1.3.7.2 “Clean” up the State’s water supply, and
3.1.13.7.3 Exist in perpetuity by administering the principal,
admimistrative fees and interest eamned from the repayment
of loans.

3.1.1.3.8 The WVDEP Division of Water and Waste Management
maintains Tesponsibility for the operation -and general
management of this fund. The fund has been in operation since
November 1, 1991.

The source of revenue for the CWSRF includes principal
repayments, interest earnings both on the loans made and from
the subsequent -investments of these payments with -the
Investment Management Board, administrative fees, Federal
Grants and the 16.7% state match funds provided by the West
Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs and Development Council.

Once the project has met all pre-construction technical and
administrative requirements, the loan recipients are allowed to
go to bid. A bid package is submitied for review and
authorization before loan closing is set.  The Water
Development Authority (WDA) is the Program’s bank. The
WDA bond counsel takes the necessary steps to ensure the
bonds payable by the locality to the CWSRF are properly
issued. The WDA also monitors -the loans to ensure that the
repayment schedules are being met.
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3.1.1.3.9

3.1.1.3.10

3.1.1.3.11

3.1.1.3,12

The loan recipients make the principal, interest and
administrative fee repayments directly to the Mumicipal Bond
Commission (MBC). The MBC calculates the interest due on
cach repayment and maintains the repayment schedules. The
MBC transfers the funds collected to the CWSRF om za
quarterly basis. The funds, if not currently required, are then
invested with the Investment Management Board.

Department Structure/Method of Reporting: The Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund is administered by the
Division of Water and Waste Management, with oversight by
the Office of Administration, Fiscal Services.

The CWSRF operates as a special revenue fund of the
Department. The fund is accounted for and reported as an
enterprise fund in West Virginia’s Comprehensive Anmual
Financial Report and in separately reported financial
statements,

Maintenance and Tracking of Financial Operations: The
financial operations of the Department are maintained as
follows:

CWSRF financial statements are currently maintained using
Microsoit Excel.

Availability of Audit Reports and Work Papers: Reports
and work papers for the Fund’s fiscal years 2013 and 2614 will
be made available upon request from the WVDEP Chief
Financial Officer.

Audit of Investments: The CWSRE’s investment portfolio is
managed by and in the custody of the Investment Management
Board (IMB) of the State of West Virginia. The IMB is
audited annually by independent Certified Public Accountants.
‘The auditor will be required by the Department to rely on this
audit work to the fullest extent,
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3.1.1.4 Time Requirements:
34141 Terms of Engagement: The contract-is-to-audit the trial
balance and the required GAAP financial statements for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
3.1.1.4.2 Timetable for Completion of Audit:

Entrance Conference Within 2 weeks of Notice to Proceed.
Field work completed and draft

financial statements September 7, 2015

Exit conference and draft audit report September 10, 2015

Final audit report October 8, 2015

The exit conference will be held with the Chief Financial
Officer, the Program Manager and-the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Manager. The purpose of the meeting will
be to summarize the results of the audit.

Twenty bound, signed copies and an electric copy of the
Independent Auditor’s Report on the firm’s letterhead will be
delivered to the Chief Financial Officer,

3.1.1.5 Assistance to be provided to the auditor and report preparation:

3.1.1.5.1 Fiscal Services Office and Clerical Assistance: Fiscal
Services office staff and responsible management personnel
will be available during the audit to assist the firm by providing
information documentation and explanations. The preparation
of confirmations, including copies for Fiscal Services, will be
the responsibility of the auditor.

3.1.1.5.2 Fiscal Services Staff Assistance: The Chief Financial Officer
and Accounting and Financial Reporting Manager will provide
draft copies of the financial statements, notes to financial
statements, relevant supporting work papers, and will be
available to coordinate requests for additional mformation.
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3.1.1.5.3 Report Preparation: Report preparation, editing, and printing
shall be the responsibility of the auditor.

3.1.1.6 Cost Proposal: The cost proposal shall contain all pricing information relative
to performing the engagement as described in the Request for Quotations. The
total all-inclusive maximum price to be bid is {o contain all direct and indirect
-costs-including all out-of-pocket expenses.

4, CONTRACT AWARD:

4.1 Contract Award: The Contract is intended to provide Agencies with a
purchase price for the Contract Iltems. The Contract shall be awarded to the
Vendor that provides the Contract Ttems meeting the required specifications
for the lowest overall total cost as shown on the Pricing Pages.

4.2 Pricing Page: Vendor should complete the Pricing Page by filling in the
price per unit, multiply it by the quantity and fill in the extended price.
Vendor should complete the Pricing Page in full as failure to complete the
Pricing Page in its entirety may result in Vendor’s bid being disqualified.

Vendor should type or electronically enter the information into the Pricing
Page to prevent errors in the evaluation.

The pricing page shall establish hourly rates for billing purposes. However,
the contract award will be an all-inclusive final bid.

5. PAYMENT:

5.1 Payment: Vendor shall accept payment in accordance with the payment procedures
of the State of West Virginia.
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6. DELIVERY AND RETURN:

6.1 Shipment and Delivery: Vendor shall ship the Contract ltems immediately after
being awarded this Contract and receiving a purchase order or notice to proceed.
Vendor shall deliver the Contract Items within 30 working days after receiving a
purchase order or notice to proceed. Contract Items must be delivered to Agency at
601 57" Street, E, Charleston WV 25306.

6.2 Late Delivery: The Agency placing the order under this Contract must be notified
in writing if the shipment of the Contract ltems will be delayed for any reason. Any
delay in delivery that could cause harm to an Agency will be grounds for
cancellation of the Contract, and/or obtaining the Contract ltems from a third party.

Any Agency seeking to obtain the Contract Items from a third party under this
provision must first obtain approval of the Purchasing Division.

6.3 Delivery Payment/Risk of Loss: Vendor shall deliver the Contract Items F.O.B.
destination to the Agency’s location.

6.4 Return of Unacceptable Items: [f the Agency deems the Contract Items to be
unacceptable, the Contract Ttems shall be returned to Viendor at Vendor’s expense
and with no restocking charge. Vendor shall either make arrangements for the
return within five (5) days of being notified that items are unacceptable, or permit
the Agency to arrange for the return and reimburse Agency for delivery expenses.
If the original packaging cannot be utilized for the return, Vendor will supply the
Agency with appropriate return packaging upon request.  All returns of
unacceptable items shall be ¥:0.B. the Agency’s location. The returned product
shall either be replaced, or the Agency shall receive a full credit or refund for the
purchase price, at the Agency’s discretion.

6.5 Return Due to Agency Error: Iltems ordered in error by the Agency will be
returned for credit within 30 days of receipt, F.O.B. Vendor’s location. Vendor
shall not charge a restocking fee if returned products are in a resatable condition.
Items shall be deemed to be in a resalable condition if they are unused and in the
original packaging. Any restocking fee for items not in a resalable condition shall
be the lower of the Vendor’s customary restocking fee or 5% of the total invoiced
value of the returned items.

7 VENDOR DEFAULT:

Revised 10/27/2014




REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
CWSRF AUDIT

7.1 The following shall be considered a vendor default under this Contract.

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1.4

Failure to provide Contract Items in accordance with the requirements
contained herein.

Failure to comply with other specifications and requirements contained
herein,

Failure to comply with any laws, rules, and ordinances applicable to the
Contract Services provided under this Contract,

Failure to remedy deficient performance upon request.

7.2 The following remedies shall be available to Agency upon default.

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

Revised 10/27/2014

Immediate cancellation of the Contract.

Immediate cancellation of one or more release—orders issued under this
Contract.

Any other remedies available in law or equity,
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REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
WV WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND AUDIT

HOURS HOURLY RATE TOTAL
Partners 20 $ 295 $ 5,900
Managers 40 $ 200 $ 8,000
Supetrvisory Staff 90 $ 155 $ 13,950
Audit Seniors 90 $ 125 $ 11,250
TOTAL $ 39.100
Discount_ (22,100)

Note: The award will be based on an all-inclusive final bid.

FIRM NAME: Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC

$ 17,000 Total Bid

SIGNATURE: %ﬁw DATE: August 18, 2015




RFQ No. DEP1600000005

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
Purchasing Division

PURCHASING AFFIDAVIT

MANDATE: Under W. Va. Code §5A-3-10a, no contract or renewal of any contract may be awarded by the state or any
of its political subdivisions to any vendor or prospective vendor when the vendor or prospective vendor or a related party
to the vendor or prospective vendor is a debtor and: (1) the debt owed is an amount greater than one thousand dollars in
the aggregate; or (2) the debtor is in employer default.

EXCEPTION: The prohibition listed above does not apply where a vendor has contested any tax administered pursuant to
chapter eleven of the W. Va. Code, workers’ compensation premium, permit fee or environmental fee or assessment and
the matter has not become final or where the vendor has entered into a payment plan or agreement and the vendor is not
in default of any of the provisions of such plan or agreement.

DEFINITIONS:

“Debt” means any assessment, premium, penalty, fine, tax or other amount of money owed to the state or any of its
political subdivisions because of a judgment, fine, permit violation, license assessment, defaulted workers’
compensation premium, penalty or other assessment presently delinquent or due and required to be paid to the state
or any of its political subdivisions, including any interest or additional penalties accrued thereon.

“Employer default” means having an outstanding balance or liability to the old fund or to the uninsured employers'
fund or being in policy default, as defined in W. Va. Code § 23-2c-2, failure to maintain mandatory workers'
compensation coverage, or failure to fully meet its obligations as a workers' compensation self-insured employer. An
employer is not in employer default if it has entered into a repayment agreement with the Insurance Commissioner
and remains in compliance with the obligations under the repayment agreement.

“Related party” means a party, whether an individual, corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company
or any other form or business association or other entity whatsoever, related to any vendor by blood, marriage,
ownership or contract through which the party has a relationship of ownership or other interest with the vendor so that
the party will actually or by effect receive or control a portion of the benefit, profit or other consideration from
performance of a vendor contract with the party receiving an amount that meets or exceed five percent of the total
contract amount.

AFFIRMATION: By signing this form, the vendor’s authorized signer affirms and acknowledges under penalty of
law for false swearing (W. Va. Code §61-5-3) that neither vendor nor any related party owe a debt as defined
above and that neither vendor nor any related party are in employer default as defined above, unless the debt or
employer default is permitted under the exception above.

WITNESS THE FOLLOWING SIGNATURE:
) _ Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Vendor's Name:

Authorized Signature: C/&M,ﬂ ‘fQMQ/—&j: Bafiess August 18, 2015

P West Virginia
County of Kanawha , to-wit:
Taken, subscribed, and sworn to before me this JE day of August ; ZOE.

My Commission expires ﬂ@L L/ , 20&.

AFFIX SEAL

RQTARY PUBLIC

OFFICIAL SEAL
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
Diane D. Flint
Suttle & Stainaker, PLLC
1411 Virginia St., E., Ste 100
Charleston, WV 25301
My Commission Expires Oct. 4, 2021

Purchasing Affidavit (Revised 07/01/2012)




Rev. 04/14 State of West Virginia
VENDOR PREFERENCE CERTIFICATE

Certification and application* is hereby made for Preference in accordance with West Virginia Code, §5A-3-37. (Does not apply to
construction contracts). West Virginia Code, §5A-3-37, provides an opportunity for qualifying vendors to request (at the time of bid)
preference for their residency status. Such preference is an evaluation method only and will be applied only to the cost bid in
accordance with the West Virginia Code. This certificate for application is to be used to request such preference. The Purchasing
Division will make the determination of the Vendor Preference, if applicable.

iz Application is made for 2.5% vendor preference for the reason checked:

Bidder is an individual resident vendor and has resided continuously in West Virginia for four (4) years immediately preced-

ing the date of this certification; or,

_Y__ Bidderis apartnership, association or corporation resident vendor and has maintained its headquarters or principal place of
business continuously in West Virginia for four (4) years immediately preceding the date of this certification; or 80% of the

ownership interest of Bidder is held by another individual, partnership, association or corporation resident vendor who has

maintained its headquarters or principal place of business continuously in West Virginia for four (4) years immediately

preceding the date of this certification; or,

Bidder is a nonresident vendor which has an affiliate or subsidiary which employs a minimum of one hundred state residents

and which has maintained its headquarters or principal place of business within West Virginia continuously for the four (4)

years immediately preceding the date of this certification; or,

Application is made for 2.5% vendor preference for the reason checked:

v Bidder is a resident vendor who certifies that, during the life of the contract, on average at least 75% of the employees
working on the project being bid are residents of West Virginia who have resided in the state continuously for the two years
immediately preceding submission of this bid; or,

Application is made for 2.5% vendor preference for the reason checked:

Bidder is a nonresident vendor employing a minimum of one hundred state residents or is a nonresident vendor with an
affiliate or subsidiary which maintains its headquarters or principal place of business within West Virginia employing a
minimum of one hundred state residents who certifies that, during the life of the contract, on average at least 75% of the
employees or Bidder's affiliate’s or subsidiary’s employees are residents of West Virginia who have resided in the state
continuously for the two years immediately preceding submission of this bid; or,

™

d

4, Application is made for 5% vendor preference for the reason checked:
v Bidder meets either the requirement of both subdivisions (1) and (2) or subdivision (1) and (3) as stated above; or,
5

Application is made for 3.5% vendor preference who is a veteran for the reason checked:

Bidder is an individual resident vendor who is a veteran of the United States armed forces, the reserves or the National Guard
and has resided in West Virginia continuously for the four years immediately preceding the date on which the bid is
submitted; or,

6. Application is made for 3.5% vendor preference who is a veteran for the reason checked:

Bidder is a resident vendor who is a veteran of the United States armed forces, the reserves or the National Guard, if, for
purposes of producing or distributing the commaodities or completing the project which is the subject of the vendor’s bid and
continuously over the entire term of the project, on average at least seventy-five percent of the vendor's employees are
residents of West Virginia who have resided in the state continuously for the two immediately preceding years.

7. Application is made for preference as a non-resident small, women- and minority-owned business, in accor-
dance with West Virginia Code §5A-3-59 and West Virginia Code of State Rules.

Bidder has been or expects to be approved prior to contract award by the Purchasing Division as a certified small, women-
and minority-owned business.

Bidder understands if the Secretary of Revenue determines that a Bidder receiving preference has failed to continue to meet the
requirements for such preference, the Secretary may order the Director of Purchasing to: (a) reject the bid; or (b) assess a penalty
against such Bidder in an amount not to exceed 5% of the bid amount and that such penalty will be paid to the contracting agency
or deducted from any unpaid balance on the contract or purchase order.

By submission of this certificate, Bidder agrees to disclose any reasonably requested information to the Purchasing Division and
authorizes the Department of Revenue to disclose to the Director of Purchasing appropriate information verifying that Bidder has paid
the required business taxes, provided that such information does not contain the amounts of taxes paid nor any other information
deemed by the Tax Commissioner to be confidential.

Under penalty of law for false swearing (West Virginia Code, §61-5-3), Bidder hereby certifies that this certificate is true
and accurate in all respects; and that if a contract is issued to Bidder and if anything contained within this certificate
changes during the term of the contract, Bidder will notify the Purchasing Division in writing immediately.

Bidder: Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC Signed: %M
Date: August 18, 2015 Title: Member




SOLICITATION NUMBER: CRFQ DEP1600000005
Addendum Number: 01

The purpose of this addendum is to modify the solicitation identified as
(“Solicitation”) to reflect the change(s) identified and described below.

Applicable Addendum Category:
[¢'] Modify bid opening date and time

[ | Modify specifications of product or service being sought

[ | Attachment of vendor questions and responses
[ | Attachment of pre-bid sign-in sheet

[ | Correction of error

[ | Other

Description of Modification to Solicitation:

This addendum is issued to modify the solicitation per the attached documentation and the following:
1. To modify the bid opening date to September 3, 2015 at 1:30PM, EST.,

No other changes.

Additional Documentation: Documentation related to this Addendum (if any) has been
included herewith as Attachment A and is specifically incorporated herein by reference.

Terms and Conditions:

L. All provisions of the Solicitation and other addenda not modified herein shall remain in
full force and effect.

2. Vendor should acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued for this Solicitation by
completing an Addendum Acknowledgment, a copy of which is included herewith.
Failure to acknowledge addenda may result in bid disqualification. The addendum
acknowledgement should be submitted with the bid to expedite document processing.

Revised 6/8/2012



ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM
SOLICITATION NO.:

Instructions: Please acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this solicitation by completing this
addendum acknowledgment form. Check the box next to each addendum received and sign below.
Failure to acknowledge addenda may result in bid disqualification.

Acknowledgment: [ hereby acknowledge receipt of the following addenda and have made the
necessary revisions to my proposal, plans and/or specification, etc.

Addendum Numbers Received:
(Check the box next to each addendum received)

[X] Addendum No. 1 [ ] Addendum No. 6
[ ] Addendum No. 2 [ 1 Addendum No. 7
[ ] Addendum No. 3 [ 1 Addendum No. 8
[ ] Addendum No. 4 [ ] Addendum No.9
[ ] Addendum No. 5 [ 1 Addendum No. 10

I'understand that failure to confirm the receipt of addenda may be cause for rejection of this bid. I
further understand that any verbal representation made or assumed to be made during any oral
discussion held between Vendor’s representatives and any state personnel is not binding. Only the
information issued in writing and added to the specifications by an official addendum is binding.

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Company

Authorized Signature

August 20, 2015

Date

NOTE: This addendum acknowledgement should be submitted with the bid to expedite document processing.
Revised 6/8/2012



SOLICITATION NUMBER : CRFQ DEP1600000005
Addendum Number; 02

The purpose of this addendum is to modify the solicitation identified as
(“Solicitation”)} to reflect the change(s) identified and described below.

Applicable Addendum Category:
[¢'] Modify bid opening date and time
[ | Modify specifications of product or service being sought
[¢'] Attachment of vendor questions and responses
| | Attachment of pre-bid sign-in sheet
| | Correction of error

[ | Other

Description of Modification to Solicitation:

This addendum is issued to modify the sclicitation per the attached documentation and the following:

1. To provide answers to vendor submitted secondary questions.
2. To madify the bid opening date and time to Sepiember 8, 2015 at 1:30PM, EST.

No other changes.

Additional Documentation: Documentation related to this Addendum (if any) has been
included herewith as Attachment A and is specifically incorporated herein by reference.

Terms and Conditions:

[. Al provisions of the Solicitation and other addenda not modified herein shall remain in
full force and effect.

2, Vendor should acknowledge receipt of ail addenda issued for this Solicitation by
completing an Addendum Acknowledgment, a copy of which is included herewith.
Failure to acknowledge addenda may result in bid disqualification. The addendum
acknowledgement should be submitted with the bid to expedite document processing.

Revised 6/8/2012




ATTACHMENT A

Revised 6/8/2012




CRFQ DEPI6*s
Questions and Answers

1. Question: Can we be provided a copy of the prior audit report of the WV Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund for June 30, 20147

Answer: This report is not available at this time. However, the similar 2013 audit report is
attached.

2. Question: What was the prior vendor’s audit cost and hours for the audit for June 30, 20147

Answer: This report is not available at this time, However, the similar 2013 audit cost is
detailed in the attached bid from Teed & Associates, PLLC,

3. Question: With a proposal submission date of August 20, 2015, section 3.1.1.4.2 of the
“Request for Quotation” makes reference to the fact that audit fieldwork and draft
financial statements must be “completed” by September 7, 2015. Is that a correct
expectation of the winning bidder or do those timelines need to be adjusted for the
late August notification of a winning bid?

Answer: We can move to the 15 of September.

4, Question: What was the complete fee for the June 30, 2014 audit?

Answer: As we have discussed, the FY14 audit was an anomaly and should not be used. We
do not know the final cost for the FY 2014 work that was included in the CAFR.
FY 2013 information that has already been provided should be used.

5. Question: Can you provide copies of prior year deliverables, including the final required
audit, management letter or other communication provided by the previous

auditor?

Answer: Attached is the management letter, the bid and the report for FY 2013,




CRFQ DEP16%*5
Questions and Answers

6. Question: Will the “Assistance” provided to the auditor as described in section 3.1.1.5 of the
“Request for Quotation” include the development of all calculations specific of
the Fund’s participation in PERS, financial statement disclosure, and the
development of all Required Supplementary information necessary to implement
GASB 68 and GASB 71 or will additional assistance be anticipated from the
auditor for implementation?

Answer: We may need assistance if what we have produced is less than adeguate for
reporting purposes,

7. Question: Does the Scope of this audit include the preparation of a Data Collection Form, or
is that the responsibility of the State Wide Single Auditor?

Answer: The Data Collection Form is the responsibility of the State Wide Single Auditor.




Teed & Associates,

PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

Established 1992

Member, Amencan Instilute of Certified Public Accounlants
Membar, Wast Vitginia Sectety of Cerlified Public Accountants
hlember. Tennessee Sociely of Cenlified Pubiic Accountents

James L. Teed, CPA

james_tood20008yahoo.com

Roy A, Smith, CPA
royGleatandassotiates.com

Tad Hudkins, CPA

fadGteedandassociates.com

Apri 8, 2013

Carol Leffew

WV Depariment of Environmental Protection
Ofilce of Administration

B801-57" Street SE

Charleston, West Virginia 25304

Dear Ms. Leffew:
Thank you for the request from the WV Department of Environmental Protection (DEP)

to audit the West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund, also known as the
Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Scope of Work to be Performed:

We understand the DEP is requesting the auditor to express an opinion on the fair
presentation of the CWSRF’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepled
Accounting Principles and render a report on the infernal controls and compliance with
Tille V| of the Clean Water Act,

Auditing Staﬁdards {o be Followed:

Qur approach to do the Financial and Compliance Audit will be gulded by the
professional standards, including:

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Genesrally Accepted Auditing F'rinciples as set forth by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

o Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States

e The Title VI of the Clean Water Act
Praclitioners Publishing Company Guide to Audits

We will review background information on the CWSRF, which was established under
Article 2, Chapter 22C of the West Virginia Code to {ill the void left by the demise of the
Construction Grants Program. In addition, we will acquaint ourselves with the officials
and administration.

3624 MacCerkie Avenue, SE - P D Box 4576 - Charleston, Wes| Virginia 25364 - (304) §25-8752 - Fax (304} 925-2895 - www teedandassociates.com




Carol Leffew
April 8, 2013
Page 2

We will review reporting requirements and consider general audit procedures to properly
plan the audit.

If Applicable We Wil Ask the CWSRF to Assemble;

¢ Organization charts

o List of officials and members of administration

¢ Minutes and other agreements for approval of actions of CWSRF

¢ Chart of accounts and accounting policies and procedures

» Main accounting journals. e.g., general ledger, cash receipts, disbursements,
payroll and general journals ‘

¢ Personnel files and employee fime records

e Prior and interim financial statements

¢ Correspondence

¢ Conlracts and grants documentation

¢ West Virginia infrastructure and Jobs and Development Councl| Matching Funds

+ Debt agreements

¢ Name, address, and account numbers of alt bank accounts

* Bank reconcilements and related bank statements and canceled checks

o Paid bills file '

o Trial balance of loans, principals, interest accruals, interest income, terms

+ Bid packages and loan tlosing documents

¢ Correspondence with Water Development Authority to ensure the bonds payable
by the locality to the CWSRF are properly issued

¢ Water Development Authority reports on monitoring bonds transactions are in
agreement with the bond covenants '

¢ The Municipal Bond Commission reporis

v Audit reports and work papers for the years 2011 and 2012

¢ CWBERF's investment portfolio reports and the Investment Management Board of
the State of West Virginia annual audited financial statements

Assistance:

We will expect to work with the Fiscal Services Office Staff and Responsible
Management Personne! to assist us by providing information, documentation and
explanations. We will prepare the audit confirmations.

We also expect the Controller and Accounting and Financial Reporting Manager will
provide draft copies of the financial statements, notes to the financlal statements,
relevant supporting work papers, and will be available to coordinate requests for

additional information.




Carol Leffew
April 8, 2013
Page 3

Report and Mestings:

We will prepare twenty (20} bound, signed copies and an electric copy of the audited
financial statements.

We will report to the appropriate officials each of the foilowing, If applicable:

The auditor's responsibilities under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Significant accounting policies

Other information in documents containing the audited financial statements
Disagreements with management

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

& o & & o

An exit conference will be held with the Controller, the Program Manger, and the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Manager. The purpose of the meeting will be to
summarize the resulis of the audit.

We will Include a reasonable period of time for meeting with the United States
Environmental Prolection Agency.

Engagement Letter:

Appropriate officials will be required to provide a letier of represeﬁtation lo Teed &
Associates, PLLC,

Work Papsr Retention and Access to Working Pap_eré:

All working papers and reports will be retained at our expense, for a period of five years,
uniess we are notified in writing by the Depariment of the need to extend the retention
peried. In addition, we will make working papers available, upon request, to appropriate
parties including successor audit firms and federal grantors.

Experience:

Qur firm has audited the following West Virginia entities for the period 2008 through
2011: )

County : Years
Barbour County Commission (A-133) 2010
Kanawha County Commission (A-133) 2008
Lincoln County Commission (2010, A-133) 2009 and 2010
Logan County Commission (All, A-133s} 2010 and 2011
McDowell County Commission 2008

Morgan County Commission 2009 and 2011




- Carol Leffew
April 8, 2013
Page 4

Nicholas County Commission
Raleigh County Commission (All, A-133s)
Tucker County Commission

Municipalities (Ctass Ill and IV}

- Ansted

Belmont .

Benwood

Brandonville (2009 and 2010, Reviews)
Cairo (Reviews)

Cameron

Charles Town

Chesapeake

Davy (2009, A-133)

Dunbar

Fairview

Farmington

Flemington

Grantsville (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
Harpers Ferry

Harrisville (2009 and 2010, A-133s)
Hundred

Hurricane

Lewisburg

Man

Mabscott

Mannington

Matewan (2011, A-133)

McMechen

Mitchell Heights

Menangah (2011, A-133)
Monigomery (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
Mount Hope {All, A-133s)

New Martinsviiie

Oak Hill

Pineville (2010, A-133)

Rainelle

Ravenswood

St. Marys (All, A-133s)

Sistersville (2011, A-133)

Spencer (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
Star City

Thomas

Triadeiphia

2009 and 2010
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2010

2009

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2010

2009, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009 and 2010

2009, 2010 and 2011
2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009 and 2011

2009

2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2010

2008 and 2010

2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011"
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009

2009 and 2010
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 ang 2011
2010
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Union

Village of Bethlehem

War (2009 and 2011, A-133s)
Wardensville (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
Wayne

Weirton {All, A-133s})

West Hamlin

West Union

Williamstown (2011, A-133)
Worthington (2010 and 2011, A-133s)

Boards of Health

Cabell-Hunltington Board of Health
Harrison-Clarksburg Board of Health
Kanawha-Charleston

Board of Health
Mineral County Board of Health
Monongalia County Board of Health (All, A-133s)
Monroe County Health Center (All, A-133s)
Wheseling-Ohio County Health Department (A-133)

Boards of Education

Berkeley County Board of Education (All, A-133s)
Gilmer County Board of Education (A-133)
Greenbrier County Board of Education {All, A-133s)
Kanawha County Board of Education (All, A-133s)
Mason County Board of Education {(Ali, A-133s)
Monroe County Board of Education (All, A-133s)
Morgan County Board of Education (All, A-133s)
Upshur County Board of Educalion (All, A-133s)
Wayne County Board of Education (A-133)

Public Service Districis

Armstrong

Central Hampshire (All, A-133s)
Grantsville

Lincoin (2011, A-133)
McDowell County (All, A-133s)
Nettie-Leivasy

Tomlinson

Unien

2009, 2010 and 2011
2010

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011

2009
2008, 2010 and 2011

2009
2010
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2011

2008 and 2010

2011

2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011

2008 and 2010

2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011

2008

2009, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011

2008

2009

2009
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Other Agencies, Authorities, Boards, Centers and Libraries

4C Economic Development

Authority (All, A-133s)
Barbour County Development Aulhonly
Benedum Airport Authority (A-133)
Berkeley County Development Authority
Berkeley County Emergency Ambuiance Authority
Braxton County Development Authority
Charles Town Ultility Board (All, A-133s)
Clay County Public Library
Eastern Panhandle Transit Authority
Elkins-Randolph County Airport Authority
Falrmont-Marion County

Transit Authority (All, A-133s)
Fayette County Farmiand

Protection Board
Fayette County Urban Renewal

Authority
Fred W. Eberle Technical Center
Greenbrier Vealley Airport Authority

(All, A-133s)
Hampshire County Economic

" Development Authority

Hughes River Water Board
Jackson County Airport Authorily
Jackson County Development Authority
Jackson County Solid Waste Authorily
James Rumsey Technical Center (2010, A-133)
Jefferson County Farmiand Protection Board
Kanawha County Parks and

Recreation Commission
Kanawha Cotinty Solid Waste Authority
Lincoln County Economic Development Authority
McDowell County Economic Development Authority
McDowell County Redevelopment Authority
Mercer County Airport Autharity (All, A-133s)
Mercer County Fire Service Board
Mineral County Development Authority
Mingo County Airport Authority (All, A-133s)
Mingo County Redevelopment

Authority (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
Morgantown Monongalia Metropolitan

Planning Organization
Mountain Transit Authority

2009 and 2010
2009, 2610 and 2011
2011

2010 and 2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2010 and 2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009 _
2008, 2010 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2009 and 2010

2008, 2010 and 2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2011

2009 and 2010

2011

2009 and 2010
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009 and 2010
2008, 2010 and 2011
20409

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009

2009 and 2010
2008, 20610 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011
2011
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Parkersburg-Wood Counly Area
Development Authority
Pleasants County Economic Development
Authority
Pacahontas County Solid Waste Authority
Preston County Economic Development Authority
Raieigh County Emergency Services
Authority {(A-133) -
Raleigh County Memorial Airport
Authority (All, A-133s)
Randolph County Development
Authority (2011, A-133)
Randoiph County Emergency Authority
Regional Education Service Agency il {All, A-133s)
Regional Education Service Agency Vil (All, A-133s)
Roane County Economic Development Authority
Tri-State Airport Authority (All, A-133s)
Tucker County Parks and Recreation Board
Tyler County Development Authority
Upshur County Development Authority (A-133)
Webster County Economic Development
Authority (2010 and 2011, A-133s)
West Virginia Affordable Housing Trust Fund
West Virginia Department of
Environmental Protection
Wood County Development Authority
Wood County Solid Waste Authority

No;—For—Prdﬁt Organizations and HUD

All Care Home and Community Services, Inc.

Christian Help, Inc. of Mingo County

Counctil on Aging, Inc.

Girls Incorporated of Bristol

Home Base, Inc. .

Mid-Ghio Valley Area Davelopment
Corporalion (All, A-133s)

Mid-Ohio Valley Regional Planning
Council (All, A-133s)

Mid-Ohlo Valley Workfarce Investment
Corporation (2008, A-133)

Mountalneer Development Corporation

North Central West Virginia Community
Agtion Association, Inc. (All, A-133s)

Parkersburg-Wood County Area Development Corp.

2009, 2010 and 2011

2009
2009, 2010 and 2011
2010

2010
2008, 2010 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2008 and 2010

2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2008

2011

2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2012

20190 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2011

2008, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011
2009, 2010 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2008, 2010 and 2011

2009, 2010 and 2011
2010, 2011 and 2012

2009, 2010 and 2011
2009 and 2010
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PATCH 21 Century Community

Learning Center (All, A-133s) - 2010 and 2011
Roane County Emergency Squad, Inc. 2009, 2010 and 2011
South Western West Virginia Reglon 2 Workforce

investment Board, Inc. (All, A-133s) 2008, 2010 and 2011
STOP the Hun, Inc. ' 2010
Tech Foundation, Inc, 2009 and 2010
The STOP Coalition 2010 and 2011

The Councll of the Southern Mountains (All, A-133s) 2009 and 2010
White Sulphur Springs Emergency
Medical Services, Inc. 2011

During the period 2008 through 2011, our staff has performed 117 A-133 audits.

System of Quality Controls of Teed & Associates, PLLC:

The system of quality control of Teed & Associates, PLLC, for the accounting and
audiling practice has been reviewed by an independen! Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) whose review was conducted in accordance with standards established by the
Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certifisd Public Accountants (AICPA).
The independent CPA firm has expressed the opinion that the system of quality conirol
for our accounting and auditing practice has been designed to meet the requirements of
the quality control standards for an auditing practice established by AICPA. Also, we are
a member of the AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Cenier. We have enclosed our
latest Peer Review for your information.

Timetable for Completion of Audit:

Conference Within Two Weeks of—Notice o Proceed
Field work completed and
draft of financial statements September 10, 2013
Exit conference and draft
audif report September 13, 2013
Final audit reporf : October 11, 2013

Cost Proposal of Audit for the Year Ended June 30, 2013:

The cost proposal contalns all pricing information relative to performing the engagement
as described in the Request for Quotation. The total all-inclusive maximum price {o be
bid contains all direct and indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses.
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Rates by Member (Parlner), Manager and Staff Level Time Hours Anticipated for Each:

Estimaled Hourly

Staff Position Hours Rate Tolal
Member ' .
James L. Teed, CPA 14 - $175.00 $ 2450
Manager ,
Roy A Smith, CPA 25 $ 100.00 2,500
Staff Accouniant 25 $ 40.00 1,000
(To be assigned)
Staff Accountant 25 $ 40.00 _ 1,000
{To be assigned) '

Grand Total 75 Hours * $6.950

In Conclusion:

We welcome the opportunily to once again be the Auditor for the CWSRF. We iook
forward to working with you,

Singerely, —_—
wmes A réwaé\(’wp&
ames L. Teed, CPA

Endlosures




west virginia depariment of enviionmento! protection

Office of Administration - Fiscal Services arl Ry Tomblin, Goverror
601 57 Strect SE Randy €. Huffman, Cablnet Secretary
Charleston. WV 25304 . ‘ dep.wy.goy

Phone: (304) 9260480
Fux:  {304)926.0481

Septcniber 30,2013

Teed & Associates, PLLC

3624 MacCorkle Avenue SE

P. 0. Box 4576

Charleston, West Virginia 25364

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of West
Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position end, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related noles to the financial
stalements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.§. GAAP),

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material, ltems are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstaternent that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
materlal es a result of qualitative factors. S

We confirm, fo the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 20, 2013, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audlt engagement letter dated
August 19, 2013, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements and for preparation of the supplementary informalion in accordance with the applicable
critefia,

2} The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented In conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial Information of the primary government and all
component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial
reporting entily.

3) We acknowledge our responsibillty for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
confrol relevani to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are frea from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of interpal
conirol to prevent and detect fraud.

5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

Promeoting a healthy environment.
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8) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expendituresfexpenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounls receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of

U8, GAAP,

7) All events subsequent lo the date of the financial statements and for which U.8. GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including instances of
noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this
letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements [or in

the schedule of findings and questioned costs).

8) The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, io
the financial statements,

8) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP,

information Provided

10} We have provided you with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, thal is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters,

b} Additional Information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit,

¢) Untestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
sudit evidence.

11) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements [and the schedule of expenditures of fedsral awards].

12) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entily and involves:

a) Management,
b} Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or »
c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

13) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity's financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others,

14} We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regutations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial staternents.

16} We have disclosed to you afl known aclual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

16) We have disclosed to you the Identity of the entity's related parties and alt the related party
refationships and fransactions of which we are aware,
Government—specific

17) We have made available to you aill financial records and related da!a and all audit or relevant
monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

18) There have been no communications from regulatory agencles concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies In, financial reporting praclices.
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18) We have identified to you any previous audils, attestation engagements, and other studies related to
the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

20) The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund has no plans or intentions that may
materially affect the carrying value or classificalion of assets, liabilities, or equity,

21) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identified
and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
belleve have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial stalement amounts-or other
financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific aclivities in separate funds.

22) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations, provisions
of contracls and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose sffects
should be considered for disclosure in the financlal stalements, or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency, or for reporiing on noncompliance.

23) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial slatements and related notes. We
have designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience 1o oversee your services
and have assumed all management responsibifities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

24) The West Virginia Water Poliution Control Revolving Fund has sallsfactory fitle to all owned assets,
and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has any assei been pledged as
collateral.

25) The West Virginia Water Polittion Control Revolving Fund has complied with all aspects of
contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
noncompliance,

26) We have followed all applicable Jaws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.
27) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

28} All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly
important to financial statement users,

28) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted: and unrestricted) and equity
amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

30) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

31} Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on 2 reasonable basis.

32) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general
revenues, conlributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund
principal.

33) Inferfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and batances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

34) Deposits and Invesiment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as o risk and
are properly disclosed.
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35) We have appropriately disclosed the West Virginia Water Poliution Control Revolving Fund's policy
regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that
net position is properly recognized under the policy.

36) We acknowiedge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSl). The RS! is
measured and presented wilhin prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used In the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant asswmptions and interprefations underiying the measurement and presentation of the RS

37) With respect to the individual fund activity and other financtal information:

a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedules of individual fund activity and
other financial Information In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, and we believe the information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with accounting princlples generally aceepted in the United States of
Amerlca. The methods of measurement and presentation of the information have not changed
from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed fo you any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

38) With respect (o federal award programs:

&) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and granl agreements related
to each of our federal programs and have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of
taws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that are considered to
have a direct and material effect on each major program.

b) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance requirements applicable fo federal programs that
provides reasonable assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with
taws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that could have a
material effect on our federal programs. We believe the intemal control system is adequate and Is

functioning as intended,

c} We have made avallable to you all contracts and grant agreements (including amendments, if
any} and any other correspondence with federal agencles or pass-through entities relevant to
federal program and related aclivities.

d) We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including when
applicable, those set forth In the OMB Circufar A-133 Compliance Supplement, relating to federal
awards and have identified and disclosed fo you all amounts questioned and all known
noncompliance with the requirements of federal awards.

e) We have disclosed any communications from grantors and pass-through entities conceming
possible noncompliance with the direct and maleral compliance reguirements, including
communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date

of the auditor's report.
f) We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying
interpretations.
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)

h)

i

k)

m)

n

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct material
compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial reporis and
clalms for advances and reimbursements.

We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence

-about conditfons that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance during

the reporting pariod.

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor's report,

No changes have been made in Internal contral over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect Internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencles in internal control over compliance (including material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance), have accurred subsequent to the date as of which compliance

was audited.

Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by
the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity,
as applicable.

We have monitored subrecipients to determine that they have expended pass-through assistance
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and have met the requirements of OMB
Cirgular A-133, We have taken appropriate action, including Issulng management declsions, on a
timely basis after recelpt of subrecipients’ auditor's reporis thal identified noncompliance with
laws, regulations, or the provisions of conlracts or grant agreements and have ensured that
subrecipients have teken the appropriate and timely corrective gotion on findings. We have
considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any necessary adjustments to our
books and records. We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost

principles.
We are responsible for preparing and implementing a correclive action plan for each audit finding,

) r
Signed: ) Ve, ,C/j é-‘vé(:'f.&._,

Signed:

Signed:

Melinda Campbell, Chief of
Administration

West Virginia Depariment of
Environmental Protection

tny Emdry, Manager
CWSRF Program

West Virginia Departmen
Environmental Protection

Jean Sheppard, Chlef Financial Officer
West Virginia Depatiment of
Environmental Profection
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

West Vir{;inia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund
601 - 57" Street SE
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

Report on the Financial Statements

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of net position of the West Virginia
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund), a major fund of the State of West Virginia,
as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and cash flows for the years then ended. The financial statements of the West
Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund as of June 30, 2012, were audited by other
auditors whose report dated September 27, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion on those

statements,
Management's Respounsibility for the Financial Statentents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the
prepatation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptraller General of the United States., Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

staternents, whether due to frand or error.

3624 MocCorkle Avenue, 8E - B O. Box 4576 - Charleston, West Virginla 25364 - (304) 925-8752 - Fax (304) 925.28095 - waww.leedandassociales.com
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al} material respects,
the respective financial position of the West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund as
of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Maltters

Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 8 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essenfial
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economice, or historical context. We have applied certain lmited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
Uniled States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
duting our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence 1o express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s basic
financial statements, The accompany schedules of individual fund activity on pages 35 through
37 and the other financial information on pages 40 through 43 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audirs
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of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizarions, and is also not a required parl of
the basic financial statements.

The individual fund financial stalements and supplemental forms are the responsibility of
management and werc derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjecied to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financia! statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of Amierica. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as

a whole.

Tl F Apboncetes, AL

Teed & Associates, PLLC
September 20, 2013




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

Our discussion and analysis of the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection’s
(WVDEP) West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund) will provide an
overview of the Fund’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The Fund
operates as the State’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) under the federal Clean
Water Act (CWA). Please read this in conjunction with the financial statements that begin on

page 9.
Financial Highlights

The Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s increase in net position was approximately
4.88% or $29.5 million. The increase in net position was duc mainly to a $48.9 million increase

in loans receivable.

During the 2013 fiscal year the Fund had operating expenses that exceeded operating revenue by
$5.6 million. This is duc to the fact that American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
disbursements were reported as a $1.4 million increase, and Principal Forgiveness disbursements
were reporied as a $7.1 million increase in expenses, ARRA and Principal Forgiveness
disbursements did not increase receivables. Federal funding for ARRA disbursements was
reporied as a $1.4 million increase in Capital Grants and Contributions from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency. The federal portion of the Principal Forgiveness
disbursements was reported as a $3.8 million increase in Capital Grants and Contributions from
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The remaining $3.3 million of Principal Forgiveness
disbursements were paid from the Fund.

The Fund’s operating revenue of $5.0 million was an 8.2% increase over fiscal year 2012. This
increase is a result of the increases in administrative fees and interest income on loans. This is
viewed as favorable since the operating revenue base has consistently increased over the past

nine years.

Using this Annual Report

This annual repori consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position, the
Changes in Fund Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows on pages 9 to 13 provide
information about the activities of the Fund and present a long-term view of the Fund’s finances,
Financial information for the Revolving Loan Fund and the Administrative Fund are shown

separately on pages 35 to 37.

We have determined by reviewing the financial statements that the Fund continues to be
financially sound and stable. All of the current fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are taken
inlo account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The Fund’s net position, the
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~UNAUDITED-

difference between assets and deferred outflows, and liabilities and deferred
inflows, is onc way to measure the Fund’s financial health. The continued increase in net

position is one indicator of improving financial position. The Fund consists only of business-
type aclivities. Governmental activitics and other operations of the WVDEP are not a part of the
Fund and are not shown as a part of these financial statements.

The West Virginia Water Pollution Centrol Revolving Fund

The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund is comprised of two separate funds.
The funds are established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and
by State of West Virginia statute. Both funds are proprietary funds and use full accrual
accounting. A Statement of Cash Flows accompanies the Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position.

The 1987 amendments to the CWA phased out the EPA Construction Grants Program that began
in 1972 and replaced it with the CWSRF, a new low interest loan program. The CWSRF
program provides funding to address water quality problems through wastewater facility
construction, upgrades, or expansions as well as implementation of Non Point Source (NPS) best

management practices (BMPs).

In 1989, the West Virginia State Legislature passed the CWSRF enabling law (Chapter 22C,
Atticle 2 of the State Code). The legislation designated DEP as the State’s CWSRT management
agency. DEP provides general oversight, fiscal management, and administrative compliance
review of local governmental entities that receive funds. In 1990, DEP promulgated program
rules and awarded its first CWSRF loan in November 1991.

In 1994, the Legislature created the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council
(IIDC) to coordinate Stale and Federal funding on all water and sewer projects. Before a
community can receive a commitment of CWSRF funding, the project must first receive a
positive recommendation from the IJDC as required by State law. In addition, the WDC oversees
the disbursement of state general obligation bond and revenue bond proceeds for water, sewer,
and economic development projects. DEP participates in the IJDC process to the fullest extent to
promote environmentally sound and affordable wastewater projects. Additional coordination
with offices of the State Treasurer and the State Auditor ensure inter- and intra-agency

coordination, management, oversight, and integrity of the program.
The CWSRF currently has three financial assistance programs:

e Low Interest Loan Program (for municipal wastewater treatment works);
o Agriculture Water Quality Loan Program; and
e Onsite Systems Loan Program.
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The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund as 1 Whole

Table }
Net Position
(in thousands)
2013 2012

Current assets $ 128,387 $ 145999
Non current assels 510,945 463,767
Total assets 639,332 609,766
Current liabilities {133) (129)
Other HLabilities (641) (358)
Total liabilities (774} {(487)
Unearned Revenue {4,162) {4.406)
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources (4,162) (4,4006)
Net position;

Total restricted net position $ 634,396 $ 604,873

The net position increased by $29.5 million or around 4.88% during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013. Fiscal year 2013 included the receipt of the 24th Clean Water State Revolving Fund
Capitalization Grant. These funds were committed to finance loans for municipal wastewater
pollution control projects for the control of municipal pollution from point source discharges,
This capitalization grant will continue the debt forgiveness started by the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds. “Second round funds” are those dollars available within
the CWSRF from repayments of prior loans and invesiment earnings. They are used for
nonpoint source pollution control project loans and waste water facility funding. Effective
October 1, 2002, the program began using the 2000 census as a basis for determining the interest
rate and loan term based on median household income, As stated in the 2014 JUP, the program
will begin using 2010 data from the U.S. Census Bureau American Fact Finder by ecither Aprii 1,
2014 or the effective date of the legislation approving the IDC Legislative Rule amendment.
Only projects that have filed for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity with the Public
Service Commission (PSC) by these time frames and have received a valid binding commitment
letter for their project will proceed to closing with the 2000 Census data,




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

Table 2
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
{(in thousands)

2013 2012
Operating revenues:

Interest income on loans $ 2,568 $ 2,363
Administration fees on loans 2,443 2,268
5,011 4,631
Operating expenses 10,645 5,740
Total operating income (5,634) (1,109)

Non-operating revenue:

Invesiment income 145 103
Income before capital grants and contributions (5,489) (1,006)
Capital grants and contributions 35,012 52,785
Change in net position ' $§ 29,523 $ 51,779

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The Fund does not own any land, buildings, equipment or infrastructure. The fund has no long
term debt.

Significant Facts, Decisions or Conditions

Qur grant award for FY 2013 of $22,031,000 was awarded on September 12, 2012, A required
state match of $4,406,200 was provided by the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs
Development Council which was deposited in the CWSRF account.

In FY2013, the CWSRF program closed eightéen loans to Section 212 point source projects
totaling $53,470,473, $7,311,956 of which will be principal forgiveness and not a reccivable.
Nonpoint source loans issued by the DEP approved intermediary lenders totaled $447,961 in the
Agriculture Water Quality Loan Program, and $209,067 in the Onsite Systems Loan Program.
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The one default that had been mentioned in previous audit reports has been cured. There are no
municipal entities in monetary default as of June 30, 2013. However there are several entities
that continue to have deficiencies in their reserve fund accounts on a monthly basis that are being

waiched very closely,

In the Onsite Systems Loan Program, there appears to be a growing trend of some homcowners
getting behind in their loan payments. These situations are also being closely monitored. There
have been three uncollectible defaults due 1o the filing of bankrupicics, one of which oceurred in

fiscal year 2013,

Contacting the Fund’s Financial Management

The financial reporis are designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the Fund’s finances and to show the Fund’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the Fiscal Office of the WVDEP or the State Revolving Fund, both located
at 601 57" Street S.E,, Charleston, WV 25304, 304-926-0440.




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Due from WV Department of Environmental Protection

interest on loans

Administrative fees on loans

Current maturities of loans receivable
Total current assets

. Loans receivable, net of current maturities

Tota! assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Current Compensated Absences

Total current labilities

Compensated absences, net of current portion
Other post-employment benefits

Total liabilities

2013

2012

$ 98,962,300

$118,371,750

3,186 6,730
223,939 193,981
207,838 188,997

28,990,340 27,238,249
128,387,603 145,999,707
510,944,788 463,766,731
639,332,391 609,766,438

57,350 44,571
75,845 85,092
133,195 129,663
49,256 21,550
592,089 336,262
774,540 487,475

{Continued)




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013 and 2012

10

2013 2012
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned Revenue 4,162,000 4,406,200
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,162,000 4,406,200
NET POSITION
634,395,851 604,872,763

Net Position, restricted

$ 634,395,851

$ 604,872,763

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Operating revenues:
Interest on loans $ 2,568,412 2,362,729
Administrative fees 2,442,650 2,267,722
5,011,062 4,630,451
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 1,567,824 1,314,112
Principal forgiveness/ARRA 8,530,502 3,868,850
Qther administrative costs 547,122 556,833
10,645,448 5,739,796
Total operating income (5,634,386) (1.109,345)
Non-operating revenues:
Investment income 145,576 102,890
Income before capital grants and contributions (5,488,810) (1,006,435)
Capital grants and contributions: :
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 30,605,698 48,182,138
State of West Virginia 4,406,200 4,603,800
35,011,898 52,785,938
Change in net position 29,523,088 51,779,483
Net position, beginning of year 604,872,763 553,093,280
Nel position, end of year $634,395,851 - § 604,872,763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Operating activities:

Cash payments for:
Loans originated
Principal ForgivenessfARRA
Personnel expenses
Administrative expenses

Cash receipts for:
Principal repayments
Interest on loans revenue
Administrative fee revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Capital and related financing activities:

' Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue

Capital grants and contributions from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency

Capital grants and contributions from the State of
West Virginia

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities

Investing activities:
Investment income

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents balance, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2013 2012
$(76,291,622) $(58,952,887)
(8,530,502) {3.8068,580)
(1,285,947) (1,281,434)
(523,443) (711,307)
27,346,219 25,809,600
2,538454 2,374,693
2,424,117 2,251,976
(54,322,724) (34,377,939
(244,200) 4,400,200
30,605,698 48,182,138
4,406,200 4,603,800
34,767,698 57,192,138
145,576 102,890
(19,409,450) 22,917,089
118,371,750 95,454,661

$98,962,300

$ 118,371,750

{Continued)




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Reconciliation of operating income to cash used in operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided
by operating activities:
Increase in loans receivable, net
{Increase) decrease in other receivables
Inctease (decrease) in due to WV Department of
Environmental Protection ‘
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in OPEB
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

2013 2012
$(5,634,387)  $ (1,109,345)
(48,930,148) (33,143,287
(45,254) (2,224)
18,459 (12,697)
255,827 46,846
12,779 (157,232)
§(54,322,724)  $(34,377,939)

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE FUND

The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund) was established
pursuant to Title VI of the Clean Water Act and by the West Virginia Legjsiature under
Chapter 22C, Article 2 of the West Virginia Code, as a component unit of the State of West
Virginia, The purpose of the act was to establish and implement a State ‘operated revolving
loan fund to provide low interest loans to communities that require sewer service either by
upgrading the existing wastewater system or establishing a new utility, clean up the State’s
water supply, and remain in perpetuity by recirculating the principal and interest earned from
the loans. The Fund's loan programs are designed to provide financial assistance to local
governmental entities (such as municipalities and public service districts) in West Virginia to
assist in complying with the Clean Water Acl. Such loan programs provide long-term
financing to cover the cost of construction for qualifying projects for pollution control,
including non-point source projects and developing cstuary conservation and management

plans.

The Fund was capitalized by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) through a
series of grants starting in 1990. States are required to provide an additional twenty pereent
of the Federal award as matching funds in order (o receive continued funding. As of June 30,
2013, Congress authorized the EPA to award $553,605,586 in capital grants and
contributions to the FFund. The State of West Virginia is required to contribute $98,526,327

in matching funds.

The State of West Virginia charges the Fund for time spent on activities by employees,
and the Fund reimburses the State of West Virginia for such costs. The charges include the
salaries and benefits of the cmployees, as well as indirect costs atlocated to the Fund based
on direct salary costs. Employees charging time to the Fund are covered by the benefits
provided to all employees of the State of West Virginia.

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The Fund is accounted for as a proprietary fund special purpose government engaged in
business type activities. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments,” and accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, the financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, using the flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under this basis of
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and cxpenses are recognized when
incurred. As permitted by GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Fund has elected not to adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements
and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts

such FASB statements or interpretations.

The Fund is included in the State’s basic financial stalements as a proprietary fund and
business type activity using the accrual basis of accounting, Because of the Fund’s
presentation in these financial statements as a special purpose government engaged in
business type activities, there may be differences in presentation between the amounts
reported in these financial statements and the basic financial statements of the State as a

result of major fund determination.

Cagh and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of interest-carning deposits with the West
Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI), which are carried at market value, which
approximates cost. These deposits are not separately identifiable as to specific types of
securities. Such funds are available to the Fund with overnight notice.

Use of Estimales

- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.

Loans Receivable

The State of West Virginia operates the Fund as a revolving direct loan program,
whereby loans made 1o recipients are funded by the Federal capital grants and contributions
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cantinued)
Loans Receivable (Continued)

and the corresponding state matching amount. Loan funds are disbursed to the local recipient
agencies as they incur costs on the approved project. Interest, if applicable, is calculated
from the date that recipients begin repayment, and the payment schedule is adjusted for
actual amounts disbursed and interest accrued. The loans are secured by a lien on the
revenues of the recipients’ system project and by debt service reserve funds held by the West
Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. No provision for uncollectible accounts has been
made since management believes that all loans will be repaid,

Administrative Fees

Adminisirative fees are composed of a percentage of the outstanding loan balance and are
recognized as income when fees are earned over the life of the loan, Administrative fees are
collected concurrently with principal reduction payments by individual borrowers at terms
sei forth in the applicable loan agreements over the life of the loan.

Compensated Absences

Employees fully vest in all earned but unused annual leave, and the Fund accrues for
obligations that may arise in connection with compensated absences for annual Jeave at the
current rate of employee pay. The estimated obligation for such benefits, as they relate to
employees of the Fund, is recorded as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.

Capital Grants and Contributions

Amounts received from the EPA and the State of West Virginia for the continued
capitalization of the Fund, are recorded at cost as capital grants and contributions,

Net Position

Management has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB»)
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position, which provides financial reporting guidance for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The Statement also amends net asset
reporting requirements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by
renaming that measure as nel position, rather than net assets. The Fund will report uncarned




17

THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

revenue as a deferred inflow of resources, The effect of the statement on the Fund’s financial
reporting is to rename net assets as net position and report uneamed revenue as a deferred

inflow rather than a liability.

Net position is the différence between assets and deferred outflows, and hiabilities and
deferred inflows. Net position is presented as restricted. Restrictions on net position are
externally imposed constraints by the grantor agency on the residual portion of capital grants
and contributions available for lending purposes.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reporied as Assels and
. Liabilities, which established accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources
(expenses or expenditures) or inflows of resources (revenues), certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities. Although the provisions of this Statement are
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012,
management has chosen to implement it early for fiscal year 2013. This Statement will affect
the Fund’s financial statements. Unearned revenue that was received in fiscal ycar 2012 is
reclassified as a deferred inflow rather than a liability. This caused a decrease in current and
total liabilities and creates a deferred inflow balance.,

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds arc those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all
revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, non-capital financing, or

investing activities.

Reclassification

Principal Forgiveness and ARRA disbursements are expensed duc to the fact that these
funds will not be repaid. In prior years these expenses rolled into the Administration
Expenses in the Statement of Cash Flows and Other administrative costs in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position. Starting in fiscal year 2013 these
expenses are classified as Principal Forgiveness/ARRA and are no longer included in
Administration Expenses. The Principal Forgiveness and ARRA disbursements for fiscal
year 2012 were reclassified in the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Net Position.




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unearned revenue was previously classified as an Operating Activity. I is now classified
as an increase or decrease in Financing Activities. Unearned revenue in fiscal year 2012 has
been reclassified as an increase in Financing Activities,

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with the State Treasurer’s Office and the
West Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI).

AtJune 30, 2013 and 2012, the balances with each were as follows:

2013 2012
State Treasurer's Office $ 213 $ -
BT} 98,962,087 118,371,750
Total § 98,962,300 $118,371,750

The State Treasurer's Office has slatutory responsibility for the daily cash management
activities of the State’s agencies, depariments, boards, and commissions. The State
Treasurer's Office determines which funds 10 transfer to the BTI for investment in
accordance with the West Virginia Code, policies set by the BT, and provisions of bond
indentures and trust agreements when applicable. The Fund’s cash balances are invested

with the BT in investment pools.

Deposits with BT at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were invested in two investment pools as
follows:

2013 2012
WV Money Market Pool | $92,678,869 $112,708,002
WYV Government Money Market Pool 6,283,218 5,663,748

Tolal investments $98,962,087 $118,371,750




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The following information addresses risks associated with deposited investments with the
BTI as of June 30, 2013; '

WV Money Market Pool
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparly to an investmeni will not fulfill
its obligations.

The BTI limits the exposure to credit risk in the WV Money Market Pool by requiring all
corporate bonds to be rated AA- by Standard & Poor’s (or its equivalent) or higher.
Commercial paper must be rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s and P1 by Moody's. The
pool must have at least 15% of its assets in U.S, Treasury issues.

The following table provides information on the credit ratings of the WV Money Market
Pool’s investments:

Percent of

Security Type Moody's S&P Carrving Value Assels
Commercial paper M A-lt § 243,538,000 9.76%
Pi Al $ 726,857,000 29.12
Corporate bonds and notes Aal AA- 10,000,000 0.40
11.5. agency bonds Ana AA+ 66,603,060 2.67
U8, Treasury notes * Ana AA+ 279,755,000 11.21
LS. Treasury bills * P-1 A-1+ 34,993,000 .40
Negotiable certifieates of deposit ~ Anl AA- 10,000,000 0,40
Adl At 9,000,000 0.36
Aa3 AA- 15,000,000 0.60
Pl A-l+ 50,000,000 2.00
p-1 A1 160,000,000 6.4}
P2 A-l 13.000.000 .60
1.8 agency discount notes P-1 A-i+ 445,784,000 17.46
Money market funds Anaa AAAM 200,012,000 8.02

Repurchase agreements {underlying sccurities):

LS, Treasury noles* Aaa AN 188.820,000 1.57
U.S. agency notes Ana AMF 40,500,000 1,62
£ 2.495.868,000 100.00%

* (4.8, Treasury issues arc explicitly guarantecd by the United States goverment ond are not subject 1o credit risk.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

WYV Money Matket Pool (Continued)

Concentratiop of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the WV
Money Market Pool's invesiment in a single corporate issucr. The BTI investment policy
prohibits the WV Money Market Pool from investing more than 5% of their assets in any one
corporate hame or one corporate issue.

Custodial credit risk

:

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the BTI will notf be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securitics that are in the possession of an outside party. Repurchase agreements are
requiired to be collateralized by at least 102% of thelr value, and the collateral is held in the
name of the BTI, The BTI or its agent does not release cash or securities until the

counterparty delivers its side of the transaction.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment., The WV Money Market Pool is subject to interest rate risk.

The overall weighted average maturity of the investment of the WV Money Market Pool
cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot exceed 397 days
from date of purchase, except for government floating rate notes, which can be up to 762

days.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
WYV Money Market Pool (Continued)

Inierest rate risk (Continucd)

The following table provides information on the weighted average maturitics for the
various asset types in the WV Money Market Pool,

Security Type Carrving Value  WAM (days)
Repurchase agreemenis $ 229,326,000 3
U, 8. Treasury notes 279,755,000 132
U. 8. Treasury bills 34,993,000 77
Commercial paper 970,395,000 43
Certificates of deposit 259,000,000 66
U.8. agency discount notes 445,784,000 47
Corporate bonds and notes 10,000,000 60
U.S. agency bonds/notes 66,603,000 139
Money market funds 200,012,000 ]

$ 2,495,868,000 52

Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment or deposit. The WV Money Market Pool holds no interests in
foreign currency or interests valued in foreign currency.

WV Government Money Matket Pool
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment witl not fulfill
its obligations,

The BT limits the exposure to credit risk in the WV Government Money Market Pool by
limiting the pool to U.S. Treasury issues, U.S. government agency issues, money markel
funds investing in U.S, Treasury issucs and U.S. government agency issues, and repurchase
agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury issues and U.S, government agency issues. The
pool must have at least 15% of its assets in U.S. Treasury issues.




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
WV Government Money Market Pool (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information on the credit ratings of the WV Government
Money Market Pooi’s investments:

Percent of

Security Type Moody’s S&P  Carrying Value Assets

U.S. agency bonds Aaa AA+  § 5,000,000 1.74%
U.S. Treasury notes* Aaa AA+ 50,112,000 17.45
U. 8. Treasury bills* Asza AA+ 4,999,000 1.74
U.S. agency discount notes P-1 A-1+ 125,474,000 43.69
Money market funds Aaa  AAAm 99,000 (.04

Repurchase agreements
(underlying securities):
U.S. agency notes Aaa AA+ 101,500,000 35.34
$ 287,184,000 100.00%

*ULS. Treasury issues are explicitly guaranteed by the United States gavernment and are tiot subjeat to credit tisk,

Concentration of eredit risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the WV
Government Money Market Pool’s investment in a single corporate issuer. The B'TI
investment policy prohibits the WV Government Money Market Pool from investing more
than 5% of their assets in any one corporate name or one cotporate issue,

Custodial credit risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Repurchase agreements are
required to be collateralized by at least 102% of their value, and the collateral is held in the
name of the BTI. Securities lending collateral that is reporied on the Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets is invested in a pool managed by the securities lending agent. In all transactions,
the BT1 or its agent docs not release cash or securities until the counterparty delivers its side
of the transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
WV Government Money Market Pool (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
vajue of an investment. All Consolidated Fund Pools and accounts are subject to interest rate

risk.

The overall weighted average maturity of the investments of the WV Government Money
Market Pool cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannof
exceed 397 days from date of purchase, except for government floating rate notes, which can

be up to 762 days.

The foliowing table provides information on the weighted average maturities for the
various asset types in the WV Government Meney Market Pool:

Security Type Carrying Value  WAM (days)
Repurchase agreements $ 101,500,000 3
U. §. Treasury notes 50,112,000 103
U. S. Treasury bills 4,999,000 76
U.8. agency discount notes 125,474,000 67
U.S. agency bonds 5,000,000 34
Money market funds 99,000 ]

$ 287,184,000 50

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment or a deposit. The WV Government Money Market Pool holds no

interests in foreign currency or interests valued in foreign currency.

Securities lending

In April 2013, the BT received $3,123,000 in seitlement of & class action Jawsuit filed in
2008 against BNY Mellon, N.A., as a result of losses incurred in certain BNY Mellon
securities lending cash collateral reinvestment pools that held certain securities issued by
Sigma Finance Inc., or Sigma Finance Corp on October I, 2008. The proceeds of the
settlement were deposited in the Reserve Pool and will be distributed to the WV Money
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3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

WV Government Money Market Pool (Continued)

Sccurities lending (Continued)

Market Pool, WV Government Money Market Pool and WV Short Term Bond Pool over a
period of two years starting July 1, 2013 based upon their pro-rata share of losses incurred in
the BTI's securities lending program in October 2008,

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, loans receivable consisted of loans to municipalities and
public service districts for the construction of sewer facilities to comply with the Clean Water
Act. In addition, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, loans were issued 1o
financial institutions for the non-point source program used to provide matching low interest
loans for eligible reclpients. Loans for municipalities and public service disiricts carry
interest rates ranging from 0% to 3% and administrative fecs ranging from 0% to 1%, nol (o
exceed an aggregate of 3%, Loans for the non-peint source program carry interest rates from
0% to 2%, which are refained by the financial institution. Loans for municipalitics and
public service districts arc generally amortized over a period not to exceed forty years
starting one year after the project is completed, and loans from the non-point source program
are generally amortized over a period not 1o exceed ten years.

Loans with municipalities and public service districts are secured by the net revenues of
the respective system, and the municipalities and public service districts arc required to
maintain a reserve account with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission, Loans to
recipients who issue bonds for repayment of the Joan are required 1o deposit in the reserve
account an amount equal to not Jess than one-twelfth of one-tenth of the reserve requirement
or, if funded, an amount necessary to maintain the reserve account at the reserve requirement.

The reserve requirement is generally equal to one year’s principal and interest payments
and is required to be fully funded within ten years from issuance of the debt, Loans for the
non-point source program are made to the approved financial institutions that in tum make
loans -to eligible recipients based on approved projects. The financial institutions assume
credit risk for the loans to the eligible recipients,
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4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Centinucd)

As of June 30, 2013, forty-five loans outstanding have cumulative deficiencies in
reserve fund balances of $274,978.

Total cumulative foans authorized as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were as {ollows:

2013 2012
Loans Remaining Loans Remaining
Authorized  Commitment  Authorized  Commitment

Completed projects $ 700,878,236 $ - $623,348,066 § -
Projects in progress 149,636,952 46,788,750 173,365,637 69,278,887

$ 850,515,188 §$46,788,750 $796,713,703 § 69,278,887

Loans mature at various intervals through June I, 2053. Payment schedules arc
calculated based on the authorized loan amount. If a loan recipient does not utilize the
entire authorized amount, the payment schedule is recalculated 1o reflect the reduced
amount, The $46.8 million difference in the scheduled principal payments shown below
and loans receivable in the Statement of Net Position represents the amount of authorized

loans not utilized at June 30, 2013,

The fiscal year 2013 Clean Water Act Title VI funding allocation for West Virginia
requires a minimum amount be set aside for providing additional loan subsidization in the
form of grants or principal forgiveness to qualifying communities. In accordance with the
CWSRF stale statute, which says in part, “...moneys in the fund shall be used to make
grants for projects to the extent allowed or authorized by federal law”, the DEP will be
setting aside the maximum amount which will be used for providing additional loan
subsidies for disadvantaged communities. Principal forgiveness of all or part of a loan wil]
be the mechanism that will be used to supply the additional subsidization. In fiscal year
2013 the program also expended the remainder of the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grant,

2013 2012
Principal Forgiveness $ 7,140,767 $ 1,791,182
ARRA 1,389,735 2,077,398

Total ¥ 8,530,502 $ 3,868,850
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4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The scheduled principal payments on all loans maturing in subsequent years are as

follows at June 30, 2013:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafier

Less current maturities

Less authorized, but not disbursed

Major Loang to Local Agencics

$ 28,990,340
31,456,111
31,271,463
30,304,453
30,191,015

434,510,496

586,723,878
28,990,340

557,733,538
46,788,750

$ 510,944,788

As of June 30, 2013, the Fund haf; authorized loans to thirty-two separate entitics that
exceed 37 million. The outstanding balances of these loans represent approximately 74%
and 71% of the total loans receivable as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as follows:
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4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Authorized June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

Local Agency Loan Amount Balance Balance
Beckley § 21,754,099  $12,043,97] § 13,095,821
Berkeley County PSD 80,778,117 46,124,934 49,125,591
Bluefield 10,727,569 1,744,450 2,027,151
Charleston 68,241,189 43,629,775 28,524,186
Charles Town 22,590,551 15,706,870 6,321,359
Clarksburg 7,484,243 2,721,044 3,123,374
Claywood Park PSD 8,327,500 7.416,016 7,549,716
Crab Orchard McArthur PSD 13,576,451 10,466,935 0,587,407
Dunbar 16,152,148 8,541,995 9,163,231
Elk Valley 18,061,117 16,857,037 17,459,077
Elkins 9,759,411 7,706,965 8,133,638
Flatwoods Canoe Run 11,329,000 8,328,459 6,577,891
Follansbee 8,616,372 2,908,008 3,338,827
Hancock 11,349,771 7,345,385 7,673,631
Huntington 13,600,844 §,458,018 8,386,603
Kingwood 16,671,739 10,619,601 605,952
Logan 10,174,993 8,247,595 2,425,823
Lubeck PSD 8,666,272 3,781,033 3,638,790
Moorefield 17,900,000 16,339,751 1,553,458
Morgantown 43,133,895 24,306,173 32,758,074
Nitro 9,453,080 4,688,220 5,139,928
North Beckley PSD 17,942,963 10,927,630 11,660,578
Parkersburg 23,233,747 18,597,005 14,744,247
Pea Ridge 15,200,321 10,137,602 10,691,249
Princeton 2,100,000 8,779,573 7,083,530
Saint Albans 16,281,000 8,133,044 8,949,840
Salt Rock PSD 13,938,062 10,701,964 11,044,230
Scotts Run PSD 9,800,207 8,068,549 8,092,507
Shady Spring PSD 13,233,510 8,109,221 8,618,238
Shepherdstown 9,172,697 8.866,937 8,561,582
Union Williams 16,008,291 11,814,425 12,348,033
Wheeling 22,856,000 18,084,526 17.458,549

$ 595,115,159 $390,202,723  § 351,462,111

The authorized loan amount includes both completed projects and projects in progress.
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5 - DUE TO OTHER AGENCIES

The Fund reimburses the West Virginia Department of Environmental Proteetion (the
Department) for the direct and indirect costs incurred by the Fund, but paid by the
Department. In addition, the Fund has an operating agreement with the West Virginia Water
Development Authority for project analysis and administrative services. At June 30, 2013
and 2012, the Fund owed $ -0- and $-0-, respectively to the Department, and $27,561 and
$18,120, respectively, to the West Virginia Water Development Authority.
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The Fund is perpetuated by other net revenues, grants, and contributions from the EPA
under the Clean Water Act and matching funds from the State of West Virginia. All funds
drawn are recorded as capital grants and conttibutions from the EPA and the State of West
Virginia. As of June 30, 2013, the cumulative amounts awarded to the Fund from the EPA

and required matching funds from the State of West Virginia were as follows:

Federal

Fiscal
Year

1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

1999

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Total

EPA State
Grant Match
Amounis Amounts

$ 20,889.974 § 4,177,994
31,353,287 6,270,657
9,661,835 1,932,367
30,288,852 6,057,770
29,962,449 5,992,490
37,792,161 7,558,432
No Award No Award
41,165,207 8,233,041
20,991,267 4,198,253
20,993,049 4,198,610
20,921,868 4,184,373
20,735,946 4,147,189
No Award No Award
20,859,280 4,171,893
20,821,900 4,174,379
37435400 7,500,678
13,650,912 2,730,182
16,684,470 3,336,894
10,607,850 2,121,570
48,873,680 -
22,826,270 2,121,570
32,039,929 6,407,985
23,019,000 4,603,800
22,031,000 4,406,200
$553,605,586 § 98,526,327
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6 - CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

Subsequent to June 30, 2013 the Fund had applied for additional funding from the EPA
under the Clean Water Act in the amount of $20,813,000. The respective matching funds
from the State of West Virginia of $4,162,000 were received in fiscal year 2013,

The following represents the amounts of the EPA grants and contributions received and
receivable and the applicable State amounts contributed to the fund as of June 30, 2013,

Total Capital
Federal Grants and
June 30 Capital State Capital  Contributions
1992 $ 258,894 % 4,100,000 $ 4,358,894
1993 11,435,030 - 11,435,030
1994 6,550,679 3,873,001 10,423,680
1995 11,427,541 10,465,787 21,893,328
1996 22,336,689 5,992,490 28,329,179
1997 13,347,837 7,558,432 20,906,269
1998 22,507,123 - 22,507,123
1999 34,283,138 £,233,04} 42,516,179
2000 47,718,753 8,396,863 56,115,616
2001 54,843,161 4,184,373 - 59,027,534
2002 22,842,295 4,147,189 26,989,484
2003 28,135,192 4,156,416 32,291,608
2004 32,799,962 - 32,799,962
2005 31,477,847 8,307,321 39,785,168
2006 20,241,737 3,367,686 23,609,423
2007 12,627,016 2,730,182 15,357,198
2008 20,788,189 3,336,894 24,125,083
2009 11,384,297 2,121,570 13,505,867
2010 34,164,564 2,121,570 36,286,134
2011 35,698,873 6,407,985 42,106,858
2012 48,182,138 9,010,000 57,192,138
2013 30,605,698 4,162,000 34,767,698

Total $ 553,656,653 § 102,672,800 $ 656,329.453
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7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related lo toris; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and natural
disasters.

The Fund has obtained coverage for job-related injuries of employces and health
coverage for its employees (hrough its participation in the former West Virginia Workers'
Compensation Commission and effective January 1, 2006, Brickstreet Mutual Insurance
Company (Brickstreet) and the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA).
On October 1, 2011 Brickstreet was replaced by Zurich American Insurance Company
(Zurich North America). In exchange for the payment of premiums to PEIA and Zurich, the
Fund has transferred its risk related to health coverage for employees and job-related injuries

of employees,

The Fund participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management to
obtain coverage for general liability, personal injury liability, professional lability, stopgap
Jiability, wrongful act liability, and comprehensive auto liability. Such coverage is offered in
exchange for an annual premium,

8 - PENSION PLAN

All full-time Fund employees are eligible to participate in the State of West Virginia
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system. The PERS is one of several plans administered
by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB) under the direction of
its Board of Trustees, which consists of the Govemor, State Auditor, State Treasurer,
Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine members appointed by the
Governor. CPRB prepares separately issued financial statements for each retirement system it
administers, which can be obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board, 4101

MacCorkle Ave $.E., Charleston, West Virginia 25304-1636.

Employees who retire at or after age sixty with five or more years of contributory service
or who retire at or after age fifty-five and have completed twenty-five years of credited
service are eligible for retirement benefits as established by State statute, Retirement benefits
are payable monthly for life, in the form of a straight-line annuity equal to two percent of the
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8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued)

employee’s final average salary, multiplied by the number of years of the employce’s
credited service at the time of retirenient.

Covered employces are required to contribute 4.5% of their salary to the PERS, and the
Fund is required to contribute 14.0% of covered employees’ salaries to the PERS. The
required employee contribution percentage has been established and changed from time to
time by action of the State Legislature. The employer contribution percentage has been
established by PERS. The required contribufions are not actuarially determined; however,
actuarial valuations are performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate values.
The Fund and employce contributions, which equal the required contributions, for the three
years ended June 2013, 2012, and 2011 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Fund contributions (14.0%/14.5%/12.5%)  $128,959 § 136,i21 $ 113,380
Employee contributions (4.5%) 43,073 43,843 47,943
Total contributions $172,032 $ 179,964 $ 161,323

9~ OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPERB)

The GASB has issued Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”, and Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (OPEB). The
GASB statements are based on the premise that the “costs” of employee services should be
reporied during the periods when the services are rendered. Beginning with fiscal year
ending June 30, 2008, the State will implement accounting and financial reporting
requirements as an employer under GASB Statement No, 45. The financial statements will
report OPEB funded status and funding progress and any “premium subsidy” resulting from
the pooling of retiree participants with active employees in the health benefit plans. For
“employer” OPEB reporting the State will report “expense” on an accrual basis in the amount
of the “annual required contribution” and a “liability” for the amount of the “annual required

contribution™ that was not actually paid.
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9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funds have not been set aside to pay future costs of retirees, but the Legistature in
response to the GASB statements, has made statutory changes to create the West Virginia
Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (RHBT), an irrevocable trust fund, in which employer
contributions for future retiree health costs may be accumulated and invested, and which is
expected to facilitate the separate financial reporting of OPEB. The legislation requires the
RHBT to determine through an actuarial study, as preseribed by GASB Statement No, 43, the
Annual Required Contribution (the ARC) which shall be sufficient to maintain the RHBT in
an actuarially sound manner, The ARC shall be allocated to respective employets including
the Fund who are required by law to remit at least the minimum annual premium component
of the ARC. Revenues collected by RHBT shall be used 1o fund current OPEB healthcare
claims and administrative expenses with residual funds held in trust for future OPEB costs,

Plan Description

The Fund participates in the West Virginia Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB
Plan) of the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund, a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit postemployment healtheare plan administered by the West Virginia
Public Employee Insurance Agency (WVPEIA), The OPEB Plan provides retiree posi-
employment health care benefits for participating state and local government employers, The
provisions of the Code of West Virginia 1931, as amended (the Code), assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit plans to the WVPEIA Board of Trustees. The WVPEIA
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the OPEB Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to
Public Employeces Insurance Agency, 601 57" St., 8.E., Suite 2, Charleston, West Virginia,

25304, or by calling 1-888-680-7342,

Funding Policy

The Code requires the OPEB Plan to bill the participating employers 100% of the Annual
Required Contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any uniunded
actuarial Jiabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.
State of West Virginia plan employers are billed per active health policy per month.

The ARC rate for years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $79 and $794 per employce
per month, respectively. Through June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Fund paid premiums of $0
and $0, and the Siate of West Virginia, on the Fund’s behalf, paid $0 and $0 towards the
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9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

annual Required Contribution, respectively. As of June 30, 2013, 2012 and 201 1, the Fund
has recorded a liability of $592,029, $336,262 and $289,416, respectively.
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SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND ACTIVITY

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION

Assets:
Cash equivalents
Receivables:
Due from West Virginia Department
of Environmental Protection
Interest on loans
Administrative fees on loans
Loans receivable
Tolal assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable:
Compensaled absences
Other Post-Employment Benefits
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unearned Revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

Restricted net position

35

JUNE 30, 2013

Administrative Combined
Fee Fund Loan Fund Pund Totals
$ 6,283,431 $ 92,678,869 $ 98,962,300
3,186 - 3,186
. 223,939 223,939
207,838 - 207,838
- 539,935,128 539,935,128
6,494,455 632,837.936 639,332,391
57,350 57,350
125,101 - 125,101
592,089 - 592,089
774,540 - 774,540
- 4,162,000 4,162,000
- 4,162,000 4,162,000
$5,719.915 $628,675,936 $634,395,851

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Administrative

36

Combined

Fee Fund Loan Fund Fund Totals
Operating revenues:
Interest income on loans 3 - $ 2,568,412 $ 2,568412
Administration fees on loans 2,442,650 - 2,442,650
Total revenues 2,442,650 2,568,412 5,011,062
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 1,567,824 . 1,567,824
Other administrative costs 547,122 8,530,502 9,077,624
Total expenses 2,114,946 8,530,502 10,645,448
Operating income 327,704 (5,962,090) (5,634,386)
Non-operating revenue;
Investment income 4,956 140,620 145,576
Non-operating revenue - - -
Capital grants and contributions - 35,011,898 35,011,898
Net position, beginning of year 5,117,271 599,755,492 604,872,763
Net position, end of year $ 5,449,931 $ 628,945,920 $ 634,395,851
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Administrative Combined
Fee Fund Loan Fund Fund Totals
- Operating activities:
Cash payments for:
Loans originated $ - $ (76,291,622) $(76,291,622)
Principal Forgiveness/ARRA - (8,530,502) (8,530,502)
Personnel expenses (1,285,947) - (1,285,947
Administrative expenses (523,443) - (523,443)
Cash receipts for:
Principal repayment - 27,346,219 27,346,219
Interest on loans revenue - 2,538,454 2,538,454
Administrative fee revenue 2,424,117 . 2,424,117
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 3 614,727 $ (54,937,451 $(54,322,724)




Capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and contributions

Investing activities:
Investing income

Net increas¢ in cash
Cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to
cash used in operating activities:

Operating income

Increase in loans receivable

Increase (decrease) in other receivables

Increase (decrease) in compensated
absences

Increase in other post employment
benefits

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

37

Administrative Combined
Fee Fund l.oan Fund Fund Totals
8 - $ 34,767,698 $34,767,698
4,955 140,621 145,576
619,682 (20,029,132) (19,409,450)
5,673,769 112,697,981 118,371,750
$ 6,293,451 $ 02,668,849 $ 98,962,300
344,997 (5,979,384) (5,634,387)
- (48,930,148) (48,930,148)
(43,216) (2,038) (45,254)
18,459 - 18,459
255,827 - 255,827
12,779 12,7_79
- $ 588,846 $(54.911,570) $(54,322,724)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE CAPITALIZATION GRANT FOR CLEAN WATER STATE
REVOLVING FUND AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

‘ BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund
601 - 57" Street SE
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

Report on Compliance for Federal Program

We have audited City West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund's
Capitalization Grant for Clean Watcr State Revolving Fund for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Munagement’s Responsibitity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for West Virginia Water Pollution Control
Revolving Fund's of its mafor federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance
requircments referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Getieral of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circufar A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides n reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of West Virginia Water

Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s compliance.

Opinion on Federal Program

In our opinion, West Virginia Water Pollution Contro} Revolving Fund, complied, in all material respeets,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on its Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Fund for the year ended June 30, 2013.

3624 MacCorkie Avenue, BE - P. D. Box 4576 - Charleslon, West Virginia 25364 - (304) 925-8752 - Fax (304) 925-2885 - vww.teedandossociates.com




- West Virginia Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund

Opiniou an Federal Program

In our opinion, West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolying Fund, complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on its Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Fund s for the year ended June 30, 2013

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered West Virginia
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s internal contro] over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on cach major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of exprossing an apinion on
compliance for each mafor federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of infernal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Wesl Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s internal control over

compliance. :

A deficiency in internal contral over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
funclions, fo prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with & type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such thal there is a
reasonable possibility that material norcompliance with & type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significamt deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a lederal
prograim 1hat is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in he first
paragraph of this section and was not designed o identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be matcrial weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal comtrol over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that festing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purposc.
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Teed & Associates, PLLC
September 20, 2013
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA ‘FORM BA__
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION - FINANCE DIVISION :
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING SECTION

GAAP REPORTING FORM - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS RECONCILIATION

Audiled Agency WV Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

Reconclilation of cash, cash equivalents and invesiments as reporied In the financlal slalements
{0 the amounts disclesed in the fooinole;

Deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents as reporied on balance sheet S 08,962,300
Less: cash equivalenis disclosed as investrments {88,952,087}
Add: resiricted cash and cash equivalenis disclosed as deposits
Other (describe)
Carrying amount of deposils as disclosed on Form 7 $ 213
Investments:
Investments as reporled on balance sheet s -
Add: restricted Invesimients disclosed as investments
Add: cash equivalents disclosed as Invesiments 98,962,300
Olker (describe)
Reporied amount of investments as disclosed on Form 8 $ 08,952,300

PLEABE S8END COMPLETED FORMS TO:

State of West Virginla

Finonclat Accounting and Reporting Scclion
2101 Washington Straot Ensi

Bullding 17, 3rd Fioor

Charleston, WV 25205

Tofophono Number:  304-556-4083
Fax Number 304-556-4084




ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM
SOLICITATION NO.:

Instructions: Please acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this solicitation by completing this
addendum acknowledgment form. Check the box next to each addendum received and sign below.
Failure to acknowledge addenda may result in bid disqualification.

Acknowledgment: | hereby acknowledge receipt of the following addenda and have made the
necessary revisions to my proposal, plans and/or specification, etc.

Addendum Numbers Received:
(Check the box next to each addendum received)

[ X] Addendum No. 1 [ ] Addendum No. 6
[ X] Addendum No. 2 [ 1 Addendum No,7
[ ] Addendum No. 3 [ 1 Addendum No. 8
[ ] Addendum No. 4 [ ] Addendum No, 9
[ ] Addendum No. 5 [ ] Addendum No. 10

Funderstand that failure to confirm the receipt of addenda may be cause for rejection of this bid. I
further understand that any verbal representation made or assumed to be made during any oral
discussion held between Vendor’s representatives and any state personnel is not binding. Only the
information issued in writing and added to the specifications by an official addendum is binding.

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Company

Chnin Lomdel

Authorized Signature

_September 1, 2015
Date

NOTE: This addendum acknowledgement should be submitted with the bid to expedite document processing.
Revised 6/8/2012






